
FRENCHTOWN PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT# 40 

SPECIAL SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

February 26, 2013 6:00PM 

ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Public Comment Period (non-agenda items) 

IV. BUSINESS 
A. Old Business 

1. Review/Action: School Election Resolution 

B. New Business 
1. Review/Action: Approve FY12 Audit Report 

2. Review/Action: Ratify Resignation 

3. Review/Action: Hiring 

V. Adjournment 

NOTE 1: The Board shall make a copy of the minutes available within 5 working days following the approval of 
the minutes 

NOTE 2: Please contact the Superintendent 48 hours prior to the meeting to be heard on an agenda item 
appearing on the scheduled agenda. This is not required, but is a scheduling courtesy for the 
Superintendent and the Board 

NOTE 3: To be placed on the agenda for a future meeting, please contact the Superintendent at least one 
week prior to the scheduled meeting. 

NOTE 4: A brief public comment period will be allowed for each item under the following agenda areas if 
applicable:

IV. Business 

NOTE 5: The Board Chairman will set time limits and regulations for public comment periods 



TRUSTEE RESOLUTION CALLING FOR AN ELECTION 
BY MAIL BALLOT 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees for the Frenchtown School District No. 40, 
of Missoula County, State of Montana, will hold the Annual Regular School Election by mail 
ballot on Tuesday, the 7th day of May, 2013, which date is not less than seventy (70) days 
after the passage of this resolution. 

The purpose of the election is to: 
• Elect two (2) trustees each for a three-year term 
• Seek approval of additional levies to operate and maintain the Frenchtown School 

District No. 40 for the 2013-2014 school year. 

Voting will end at 8:00 p.m. on Election Day. The designated place of deposit will be 
located at the Frenchtown Fire Hall and the Missoula County Elections Office. 

If it is later determined that any portion of the election is not required, the Board of 
Trustees authorizes the Missoula County Clerk & Recorder, election administrator, to cancel 
that portion of the election in accordance with 13-1-304 and 20-3-313, MCA. 

WHEREAS, the Missoula County Election Administrator has determined that a mail ballot 
election conducted in accordance with the provisions of Title 13, Chapter 19, Parts 1-3, M.C.A. (the 
"Mail Ballot Act"), is in the best interests of the District and the electors thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Missoula County Election Administrator will prepare a mail ballot election plan 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 13-19-203, M.C.A.; and 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the following qualified electors of the district shall serve as 
election judges: As appointed by the Missoula County Election Department. 

No fmiher proceedings were conducted relating to the election. 

JOHN MAZZOLA 
Print Name of Board Chair Signature of Board Chair 

CINDY L. MCMURRAY 

Print Name of District Clerk Signature of District Clerk 

DATED this 26th day of February, 2013. 
20-20-201 and 13-19-202, MCA 
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Missou!<l, MT 59806 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Frenchtown School District No. 40 
Missoula County, Montana 
Frenchtown, Montana 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Frenchtown School District No. 40 (District), Missoula County, Montana, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. My responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating tl1e overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my 
audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinions. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
District as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended, in conformity with generally accounting principles accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated February 26, 2013, on my 
consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the 
results of my audit. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is required by the Office of Management and Budget Circular A· 133, 
Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The schedule of school district enrollment and the 
schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of the student activity fund are required supplementary 
information by the State of Montana. 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements. The supplemental schedules referred to in the preceding paragraph are presented for 
lhe purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. These supplemental 
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applies in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my 
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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The management's discussion and analysis and the schedule of revenues, expenditures, and encumbrances-budget and 
actual are required supplementary Information by the generally accounting principles accepted In the United States of 
America. That information and the other required supplementary Information listed in the accompanying table of contents 
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied to the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, I express no opinion on the management's discussion and analysis, the budget and actual schedule, or on the 
other required supplementary Information. 

Cote ~tt~~1PLLC 
Febru~2013 
Missoula, Montana 
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ORGANIZATION 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 
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Frenchtown School District No, 40 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

OVERVIEW 

This discussion and analysis of the Frenchtown School District financial performance provides an overview of the financial 
activities for the year ending June 30, 2012. It should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes. 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide statement of net assets and 
statement of activities provide Information about the Frenchtown School District as a whole, The fund financial statements 
report the District's operations In more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the 
District's most significant funds. 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE· Government-Wide Statements 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about the District as a whole and about Its 
activities In a way that shows if the District Is In a better financial position as a result of each year's activities, These 
statements include all assets and liabllltles using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used 
by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken Into account, regardless of 
when cash Is received or paid. 

These two sets of statements also report the District's net assets and the changes in them. This is one way to measure 
the District's financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net assets can be an indicator of 
whether Its financial health is improving or deteriorating, 

TRANSITION FROM FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Following the governmental financial statements (as described below) is reconciliation from the fund financial statements 
to the government-wide statements. Longer term assets and liabilities such as general capital assets and long term debt 
are added to the balance sheet to arrive at the governmental funds statement of net assets. Increases or decreases in 
assets and liabilities create increases or decreases in revenue and expenses when activities are reconciled from the 
governmental fund statements to the government-wide. Capitalization of capital assets will remove some of the capital 
outlay expenditures (creating expense) and depreciation will increase expense at the government-wide level. 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS- Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds. Some funds are required to 
be established by state law. The District has establlsl1ed other funds to help control and manage money for particular 
purposes. The District's governmental and proprietary (business-type) funds use different accounting approaches. 

A fund Is a grouping of related accounts that Is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific purposes, 

Governmental Funds-Most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds. The balances left at year-end are available for spending, These funds are reported 
using the modified accrual method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to 
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short term view of the District's general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps In determining whether there are more 
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. 

The general fund includes all revenues and expenses that are not specifically assigned to any other fund. Special revenue 
funds track revenue and expenditures for certain segregated purposes, debt service funds track the flow ~eceipts and 
expenditures required to service governmental debts, and capital projects funds track revenueHncj(x'd/i'ltures 
associated with certain projects. o~J-\l"" 
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Frenchtown School District No. 40 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

Proprietary/Business-type Funds- there are two types, enterprise funds and internal service funds. The District does not 
have any enterprise funds, but they do have one internal service fund and that is the self-health insurance fund. These 
funds are used when the District intends to operate a service where charges cover costs. These funds are reported in the 
same way that all activities are reported in the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, so there is no 
reconciliation. Fund statements provide greater detail than the government-wide statements and include a statement of 
cash flows, 

Fiduciary Funds-financial statements show assets, liabilities and where appropriate, changes in assets and liabilities for 
funds which the District operates in a trust or agency capacity. Net assets of these funds are available to the District to 
satisfy District obligations. 

Notes to the financial statements, provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the date 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements and 
accompanying notes, this reprnt also presents additional information. 

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

Condensed financial information for the District is outline in the following tables, 

Comparative and combined governmental and business-type assets, liabilities and net assets are as follows: 

Table 1 

Current assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

2012 

$ 5,362,525 

23,926,425 

$ 29,288,950 

2011 

$ 5,268,000 

24,684,000 
<, 29,952,000 

$ 

$ 

Change 
94,525 

(757,575) 
(663,050) 

% 

1.8 
(3.1) 
(2.2) 

Current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabitiies 
Total liabilities 

$ 1,512,438 
16,042,171 

17,554,609 

$ 1,513,000 
16,868,000 
18,381,000 

$ (562) 

(825,829) 
(826,391) 

(0.0) 
(4.9) 

(4.5) 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets 

Restricted net assets 
Unrestricted net assets 

Total net assests 

$ 7,536,425 

2,133,615 

2,064,301 

$ 11,734,341 

$ 7,561,000 

2,396,000 

1,614,000 

$ 11,571,000 

$ 

$ 

(24,575) 

(262,385) 

450,301 
163,341 

(0.3) 

(11.0) 
27.9 

1.4 

Table 1 shows a 
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Comparative and combined governmental and business-type revenues and expenses were as follows: 

Table 2 
2012 2011 Change % 

Revenues 
Program revenue 

Charges for se1Yices $ 1,517,369 $ 1,391,000 $ 126,369 9.08 

Operating grants and contributions 1,081,636 1,093,000 (11,364) (1.04) 

capital grants and contributions 232,000 (232,000) (100.00) 

General Revenue 
District property taxes $ 3,161,604 $ 3,420,000 $ (258,396) (7.56) 

State equalization 5,649,843 4,507,000 1,142,843 25.36 

other State revenue 123,037 1,028,000 (904,963) (88.03) 

County property taxes 902,794 853,000 49,794 5.84 

Investment earnings 19,958 22,000 (2,042) (9.28) 

Gain on fair value of investments 14,291 14,291 

Federal revenue 580,000 (580,000) (100.00) 

other 145,000 (145,000) (100.00) 

Total revenues & transfers $ 12,470,532 $ 13,271,000 $ (683,473) (5.15) 

Expenses: 

Instruction programs $ 5,980,263 $ 6,347,000 $ (366,737) (5. 78) 

Support se1Yices 2,638,747 1,650,000 988,747 59.92 

Administration 429,336 1,438,000 (1,008,664) (70.14) 

Operation and maintenance 1,324,028 1,385,000 (60,972) (4.40) 

Student transportation 406,924 573,000 (166,076) (28.98) 

School food 586,365 612,000 (25,635) (4.19) 

Extracurricular 331,868 366,000 (34,132) (9.33) 

Interest 609,246 708,000 (98,754) (13.95) 

Total expenses $ 12,306,777 $ 13,079,000 $ (772,223) (5.90) 

Changes in net assets $ 163,755 $ 192,000 $ (28,245) (14,71) 

Net assets, July 1 11,570,586 11,378,897 191,689 1.68 

Changes in beginning equity 

Net assets, July 1 restated $ 11,734,341 $ 11,570,897 $ 163,444 1.41 

Net assets, June 30 $ 11,734,341 $ 11,570,897 $ 163,444 1.41 

Table 2 shows 
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

Changes in Fund Balances 

Table 3 

Major Funds Other Total 

General Debt Service Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Fund balances June 30, 201 I $ 1,250,582 $ 1,353,733 $ 1,113,304 $ 3,717,619 

Fiscal year 12 revenues 7,773,179 1,375,606 2,975,983 12,124,768 

Fiscal year 12 expenditures (7,651,647) (1,407,762) (2,932,115) (11,991,524) 

Fiscal year 12 transfers & 

other financing sources(uses) (35,115) 35,115 

Changes in beginning equity 

Fund balances Junes 20, 2012 $ 1,336,999 $ 1,321,577 $ 1,192,287 $ 3,850,863 

Table 3 shows 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Table 4 

Year Ended 

June 30, 
2011 
2012 

Rev

Original 

Budget 

$ 8,062,872 

$ 7,804,655 

enues and Tran

Final 

Budget 

$ 8,062,872 
$ 7,804,655 

sfers In 

Actual 

$ 8,246,255 

$ 7,773,179 

Expen

Original 

Budget 

$ 8,062,872 

$ 7,935,444 

ditures and Transfers Out 
Final 

Budget 

$ 8,062,872 
$ 7,935,444 

Actual 

$ 8,034,029 

$ 7,913,615 

Table 4 shows 

CAPITAL AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets - see Note 5 for details 

Capital Assets, Balances at June 30, 

Table 5 

2012 2011 

Land $ 590,662 $ 590,662 

Land improvments 741,859 728,139 

Buildings 27,479,629 27,471,177 

Equipment 2,683,447 2,669,984 oR~f~\Total $ 31,495,597 $ 31,459,962 
Less accumulated depreciation (7,569,172) (6,775,440) 

Net capital assets $ 23,926,425 $ 24,684,522 

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Debt Administration - see Note 6 for details 

Governmental Activities Outstanding Long Term Liabilities, Balances at June 30, 

Table 6 

2012 2011 
All general obligation bonds $ 16,405,292 $ 17,105,000 
Compensated absences & early retirement 526,715 633,082 
Capital lease 5,456 23,179 

Total $ 16,937,463 $ 17,761,261 

ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ITEMS THAT OCCURRED DURING 2011-2012 

Frenchtown Scl1ool District #40 completed its third year in the new facilities opened at the start of school in the fall of 
2009. The facilities included a new Junior High with 17 new classrooms and remodeled offices, a high school with a new 
academic wing with 16 new classrooms and remodeled offices, classrooms and library in the main building, a new 12,000 
sq. It. 7-12 vocational education building, and remodeling the old junior high into an intermediate school. The building 
projects increased capacity 50% at the junior high, 50% at the high school, and 33% at the elementary. Also, during the 
summer of 2011, many maintenance projects were completed that can't be done during the school year. During the 
summer, our schools were cleaned, painted, and refurbished for the 2011-2012 school year. We always have some major 
projects for the summer and the School Board prioritized those at our May board meeting. The district completed several 
projects including a student built new sand volleyball court and several picnic tables that were built for JHS student use 
during recess. Tl1e major maintenance projects completed in 2011-2012 were: 

1. Replacing another section of roof at the intermediate building that has been repaired several times 
2. Replacing the entrance pas on the high school sidewalk 
3. Fixing the trail to the playground by putting in fill along trail and at base of trail 
4. Repairing windows in phase II elementary classrooms 
5. Installing more auto faucets in the elementary 
6. Repairing exterior of the middle entry in the elementa,y building and the small roof below it ~t!,"r 
7. Replacing a section of sidewalk in NW entry of phase II building 00 :{ \ 
8. Repainted all parking/travel through lines in all lots ,I' 
9. Replaced tile with water absorbent carpet at several entrances in the junior high and high school 
10. Replaced some propane gas lines Roof of JH 
11. Replaced west sidewalk outside JH gym per SK Geo recommendations 

The most extensive repairs took place in the junior high. In June a hole was cores into the concrete, it revealed that the 
vapor barrier had been cut during construction of the building and this is most likely causing our tile issues in the entry 
area. Martel construction coordinated tl1e removal of tile, epoxy sealing of the concrete substrate underneath, and 

installing new tile in the entry area. 

As the Frenchtown Schools are a vital part of the Frenchtown community, the School Board has consistently sough public 
input over the years. The School Board has used several methods through the years such as: public comment at Board 
meetings, holding public meetings, distributing and collecting surveys, etc. The Frenchtown School Board and 
Superintendent have use public input to try and ensure that they build the best possible education system to meet the 
needs of our community and its students. Good communication between district voters, parents of children enrolled in 
school, the school board, and the school superintendent is key to achieving that goal. At the September school board 
meeting the Board outlined its goals in the direction the board wants to proceed to help foster, nurture, improve, and_ 
continue the excellence in the educational environment in Frencl1town. The Board decided that some of the goals set in 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 
As of June 30, 2012 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments 
Property taxes receivable 
Due from other governments 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Nonwcurrent assets: 
Capital assets. Land 
Capital asses, depreciable, net 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
Interest payable 
Deferred revenue 
Current portion of compensated absences 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities: 

Non-current liabilities: 
Long-term portion of compensated absences 
Long-term portion of bonds payable 
Capital lease 
Early retirement incentive 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

2012 2011 
$ 4,737,521 $ 4,253,358 

495,121 479,655 
71,884 501,764 
57,999 6,981 

26,022 
$ 5,362,525 $ 5,267,780 

$ 590,662 $ 
23,335,763 24,684,522 

$ 23,926,425 $ 24,684,522 

$ 29,288,950 $ 29,952,302 

$ 210,462 $ 267,986 
332,135 352,469 

74,549 
135,000 
760,292 893,030 

$ 1,512 438 $ 1,513,485 

$ 391,715 $ 16,211,970 
15,645,000 611,370 

5,456 23,179 
21,712 

$ 16,042,171 $ 16,868,231 

$ 17,554,609 $ 18,381,716 

$ 7,536,425 $ 7,561,067 
2,133,615 2,395,676 
2,064,301 1,613,843 

$ 11,734,341 $ 11,570,586 

11 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2010-2011 still reflected the priorities listed and continued them, revised some goals, dropped some goals, and added 
new goals for 2011-2012. The board used a report from the focus groups that were held last spring to survey the public 
this year in place of an actual written survey. Also used to develop the goals this year was an implementation plan from 
the leadership team regarding the Montana Effective School Correlates and state educational reform priorities for this 
year. The focus group report, the leadership implementation plan, and the state educational reform priorities were 
available for public review on tl1e district website under the heading of "District Goals for the 2011-2012 School Year." 

THE FUTURE OF THE SCHOOL 

FTSD saw its enrollment decline for the second year in a row during the 2011-2012 school year. It started with the 
national and state economic downturn that began in 2009. One of the areas hardest hit was the construction industry and 
the building of new houses. Housing starts that were in FTSD #40 remained slow. 

At the end of the 2011-2012 school year the district was awaiting further positive developments on the former Smurfit
Stone Container Frenchtown linerboard plant site and to the site's new owners, Green Investment Group, will do. Any 
passer-by can see structures in various states of disassembly and train cars of material being hauled away every day, 
presumable for scrap. It's anybody's guess how long this could go on. 

In May 2012, the founders of Illinois-based GIGI announced that they had secured the purchase of the site. Instead of 
merely selling the equipment and scrapping the rest of the property's materials, they intended to further clean up the site 
and convert it into a "green" industrial site to be known as M2Green. M2Green has said previously that it expected job 
activity, in the form of new tenants, to take two of three years and for the reinvention of the Frenchtown site to require a 
total investment approaching $40 million. 

The closing of the plant and the economic downturn has created budget problems for the district. A majority of the 
funding from the state for K-12 schools in Montana is based on a school's enrollment during the school year. It is called 
Average Number Belonging (ANS). Tile number of students in a school district is counted lwice a school year and then the 
number is averaged for the amount of funds a school district will receive from the state for ANB. Students in grades K-6 
are paid for by the state at one level and students in grades 7-12 at a higher rate. The count days for ANB are the first 
Monday of October and on February 1st of each school year. After the ANB count days it showed that FTSD lost 20 
students funded at the elementary level and lost 10 students funded at the HS level, which resulted in an overall loss of 
30 students for ANB funding. Total loss in ANB numbers are at around 100 students for the last two school years. 

Because of the drop in enrollment the district approved allowing non-resident students to attend Frenchtown Public 
Schools for the first time in several years. Admitting nonresident students has been a win-win situation financially for both 
the school district and the district taxpayers. The admission of 25 nonresident students created additional revenues for the 
district through increased ANB, while not increasing its expenses. If this continues, future requests for additional tax levies 
to support the schools from the district taxpayers could be held in check. 

With a steadily dwindling high school population during the school year and a number of those students leaving having 
dropped out, the district approved starting an alternative school during the 2012-2013 school year. An alternative school 
could pay for itself if we get ANB for 4-5 students that might have otherwise dropped out. Also, the alternative school 
would have a positive impact by the very fact it would keep students from dropping out. The high school principal 
presented his plan for an alternative school, Frenchtown Academy for Career Education (FACE), in January and the Board 

approved it at the April Board meeting. 

Although there is a projected deficit in school funding for the 2012-2013 school year, the FTSD School Board voted at the 
regular meeting in March 2012 not to ask the public to approve an increased levy for school operations. The school district 
had to make personnel cuts of administrators, teachers, classified employees and programs, and other reductions to 
address the actual deficit created by receiving ($33,513) .45% less in state education funds for FY13 than the district 
received in FY12. When the additional fixed expenses for FY13 were added in, the deficit to be addressed in FY 13 totaled 

$197,361. . _ t'\,. tr:"{01R~r-
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds 
As of June 30, 2012 

Major Funds 

General Debt Service 

Fund Fund 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds 

Total 

Governmental 

Funds 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 1,384,892 $ 1,321,877 $ 1,113,376 $ 3,820,145 

Property taxes receivable 292,091 162,286 40,744 495,121 

Due (to) from other funds 

Due from other governments 71,884 71,884 

Other receivables 16 13,475 13 491 

Total assets $ 1,676,999 $ 1,484,163 $ 1,239,479 $ 4,400,641 

Liabilities and fund balances 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 44,456 $ $ 10,201 $ 54,657 

162,286 495,121Deferred revenue 292,090 40,745 

50,946 $ 549,778Total liabilities: $ 336,546 s 162,286 $ 

Fund balances: 

Restricted $ 1,278,874 $ $ 57,343 $ 1,336,217 

Assigned 72,125 72,125 

Unassigned 61,579 1,321,877 1,059,065 2,442,521 

Total fund balance $ 1,340,453 $ 1,321,877 $ 1,188,533 $ 3,850,863 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,676,999 $ 1,484,163 $ 1,239,479 

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net asses are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 

therefore, are not reported in funds (net). $ 23,926,428 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current-period expenditures and, 

therefore, are deferred in tl1e funds. $ 495,121 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not considered due and payable, 

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds $ (16,937,466) 

$ (332,135)Interest payable 

Net assets of internal service (self-insurance) fund $ 731 530 

Net assets of governmental activities (Page) $ 11,734,341 

13 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Charges Operating 
for Grants and Net (Expenses) Revenue 

Functions/Pro~rams Exeenses Services Contributions 2012 2011 
Governmental activities: 

Instruction: 
Regular programs $ 5,600,319 $ $ 92,512 $ (5,507,807) $ (4,467,742) 
Other programs 379,944 309,260 575,144 504,460 (82,661) 

Support services 2,638,747 1,128,379 (1,510,368) (1,603,078) 
Administration: 

Schools (660,774) 
General 429,336 (429,336) (233,545) 

Financial (543,827) 
Operation and maintenance 1,324,028 (1,324,028) (1,258,494) 
Student transportation 406,924 238,899 (168,025) (341,917) 
School food 586,365 79,730 175,081 (331,554) (96,909) 
Extracurricular 331,868 (331,868) (365,656) 

Interest 609,246 (609,246) (708,210) 
Total governmental activities $ 12,306,777 $ 1,517,369 $ 1,081,636 $ (9,707,772) $ (10,362,813) 

General revenues: 
District property taxes $ 3,161,604 $ 3,419,630 
State equalization 5,649,843 4,506,764 
Other state revenue 123,037 1,027,938 
County property taxes 902,794 853,508 
Investment earnings 19,958 22,188 
Gain on fair value of investments 14,291 
Federal revenue 579,896 

Other 144,578 
Total general revenues $ 9 871,527 $ 10,554,502 

Change in net assets 163,755 191,689 
Net assets-July 1, 2011 as reported $ 11,570,586 $ 11,378,897 

Changes in beginning equity 
Net assets-July 1, 2011 as restated $ 11,570,586 $ 11,378,897 
Nets assets-June 30, 2012 $ 11,734,341 $ 11,570,586 

12 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Changes in Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental Funds, 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Major Funds Other Total 
General Debt Service Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 
Revenues 

District property taxes 
Intergovernmental: 

County 
State 
Federal 

School food sales 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenue 

$ 1,815,516 

5,935,731 
3,862 

1,962 
16,108 

$ .7.773,179 

$ 

$ 

1,093,213 

281,516 

847 
30 

1,375,606 

$ 

$ 

237,410 

1,016,524 
707,128 
800,839 

79,730 
1,050 

133,302 
2,975,983 

$ 

$ 

3,146,139 

1,016,524 
6,924,375 

804,701 
79,730 

3,859 
149,440 

12,124,768 

Expenditures 
Current operations 

Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Other programs 

SuppoIt services 
Administration: 

$ 4,418,255 
36,592 

1,246,387 

$ $ 1,182,064 
343,352 
218,630 

$ 5,600,319 
379,944 

1,465,017 

Schools 
General 
Financial 

Student transportation 
Operation and maintenance 
School food 
Extracurricular 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Total expenditures 

347,525 

1,189,858 
61,525 

301,038 
25,185 
25,282 

$ 7,651,647 $ 
1,407,762 
1,407,762 $ 

81,811 

406,924 
134,170 
524,840 
30,830 

9,494 

2,932,115 $ 

429,336 

406,924 
1,324,028 

586,365 
331,868 
34,679 

1,433,044 
11,991,524 

Excess of revenues/(under) expenditures $ 121,532 $ (32,156) $ 43,868 $ 133,244 

Other Financing Sources(Uses): 
Transfers in (out) $ (35,115) $ - $ 35,115 $ 

Change in fund balances $ 86,417 $ (32,156) $ 78,983 $ 133,244 

Fund balances-July 1, 2011, as previously reported 
Cl1anges in beginning fund equity 

Fund balances-July 1, 2011, as restated 

$ 1,250,582 

$ 1,250,582 

$ 

$ 

1,353,733 

1,353,733 

$ 

$ 

1,113,304 

1,113,304 

$ 

$ 

3,717,619 

3,717,619 

Fund Balances-June 30, 2012 $ 1,336,999 $ 1,321,577 $ 1,192,287 $ 3,850,863 

14 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

133,244Change in fund balance as reported in government funds statement 

$ 15,466Change in deferred taxes receivable not included in the government funds statement 

Expenses on the statement of activities not included in the government funds statement: 
$ (793,935)Depreciation expense 

20,534Change in interest payable 
84,655Change In compensated absence liability 

Expenditures reported in the government funds statement not included in the statement of activities: 
$ 35,637Capital outlay 

715,000Principal payments on bonds 
8,862Principal payments on capital lease 

15,281Early retirement incentive payments 

$ (70,989)Excess of revenues over expenses in the internal service fund 

Change in net assets reported on the statement of activities $ ===16=3""',7=55= 

15 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Balance Sheet-Internal Service (Health Insurance) Fund 
As of June 30, 2012 

Assets 

Current assets: 

Cash and investments 
Other current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Claims payable 

Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Retained earnings: 
Reserved for claims incurred but not made 

Unreserved 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2012 2011 

$ 917,376 $ 946,515 

44,508 26,022 

$ 961,884 $ 972,537 

$ 93,170 $ 

62,635 96,397 

74,549 73,620 

$ 230,354 $ 170,017 

$ 155,805 $ 519,864 

575,725 282,656 

$ 731,530 $ 802,520 

$ 961,884 $ 972,537 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Fund Net Assets-Internal Service (Health Insurance) Fund 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

2012 2011 

Operating revenues 
Health insurance premiums 

Operating expenses 
Medical claims 
Re-insurance premiums 
Administrative fees 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income 

Non-operating revenues 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Gain In fair value of investments 
Interest income 

$ 

Change in net assets $ 

Total net assets 
Retained earnings-beginning 
Retained earnings-ending 

$ 

$ 

1,073,488 $ 1,140,457 

900,867 
273,821 

1,174,688 

$ 

$ 

696,595 
232,307 

24,821 
953,723 

(101,200) $ 186,734 

14,291 
15,919 

$ 
8,177 

(70,990) $ 194,911 

802,520 
731,530 

$ 

$ 

607,609 

802,520 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service (Health Insurance) Fund 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Health insurance premiums received 
Medical claims paid 
Insurance premiums paid 
Administrative costs paid 

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Interest earnings 
Gain on fair value of investment 

Net cash provided/(used) by investing activities 

Net increases(decrease) in cash and investments 

cash and investments-beginning 
Cash and investments-ending 

2012 2011 

$ 1,073,488 $ 1,115,897 

(900,867) (767,307) 

(273,821) (232,307) 
(24,821) 

$ (101,200) $ 91,462 

$ 15,919 $ 8,177 

14,291 

$ 30,210 $ 8,177 

$ (70,990) $ 99,639 

$ 946,515 $ 846,876 

$ 875,525 $ 946,515 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Net operating income $ 3,os9 $ 186,734 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided/(used) by operating activities: 

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase/(decrease) in claims payable 
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue 

Net casl1 provided/(used) by operating activities 

$ (18,486) $ (8,453) 

65,559 

(6,151) (70,712) 

929 (16,107) 

45,410 91,462$===== $ 

18 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
As of June 30, 2012 

Fiduciary net assets 

Assets 

Cash 
Total assets 

Net assets 
Held in trust for student activities 

Held in trust for scholarships 

Total net assets 

Changes in fiduciary net assets 

Additions: 

Revenue from student activities 

Contributions to scholarships 

Investment earnings 

Other 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

Expenses of student activities 

Scholarships 

Other 

Total deductions 

Changes in net assets held in trust 

Net assets, July 1, 2011 

Net assets, June 30, 2012 

Student 

Activity Scholarship 

Fund Fund Total 

$ 90,336 $ 40,644 $ 130,980 

$ 90,336 $ 40,644 $ 130,980 

$ 90,336 $ $ 90,336 

40,644 40,644 

$ 90,336 $ 40,644 $ 130,980 

$ 180,300 $ $ 180,300 

6,400 6,400 

28 51 79 

(1,000) (1,000) 

$ 180,328 $ 5,451 $ 185,779 

$ 186,664 $ $ 186,664 

4,350 4,350 

5 5 

$ 186,669 $ 4,350 $ 191,019 

$ (6,341) $ 1,101 $ (5,240) 

$ 95,033 $ 39,543 $ 134,576 

$ 88,692 $ 40,644 $ 129,336 

DRAFT 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The Frenchtown School District (District) provides education from kindergarten through the twelfth grade and adult 
education classes In Frenchtown, Montana. All operations of the District are controlled by a Board of Trustees, 
elected in District-wide elections, and responsible for all of the District's activities. The flnancial statements include 
all of the District's operations controlled by the Board of Trustees. Based on the criteria for determining the 
reporting entity (separate legal entity and fiscal or financial dependency on other governments), the District Is 
considered to be an Independent reporting entity and has no component units. 

B. BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities show information about the overall financial position 
and activities of the District with the exception of the student activity and endowment funds. Eliminations have 
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. 

The statement of net assets and statement of activities are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, The activities of the District are generally financed through property 
taxes, state equalization funding, and federal and state grants. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded at the time the liability Is Incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. On the 
accrual basis, revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year in which eligibility requirements have 
been met. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function. The District does not charge Indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues 
include fees for services (primarily Medicaid and scl1ool lunch fees) and grants and contributions that are restricted 
to a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, applies restricted resources to 
expenses Incurred before using unrestricted resources when both types are available. 

Under the terms of the District's grant agreements, certain programs are funded by specific cost-reimbursement 
grants and general revenues. Generally, the District applies cost-reimbursement funds first to finance such 
programs with remaining costs paid for with general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

These statements provide information about the District's funds, including a separate statement for the District's 
fiduciary funds (the student activity and scholarship funds). The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental funds. Each major fund is displayed In a separate column. All of the remaining funds aggregated and 
reported in a single column as other governmental funds. 

Governmental Funds-are reported using the current resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. State and other 
government revenues applicable to the current fiscal year and collected soon after year-end are recognized as 
revenue. 

oRAF'T 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES, continued 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, continued 

Fund Financial Statements, continued 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and Interest on general 
long-term debt and payments for compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures when paid. General 
capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures In governmental fund and proceeds of general long-term 
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. The governmental major funds 
are: 

General Fund-this is the District's primary operating fund and it accounts for all financial resources of the District 
expect those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

Debt Service Fund-this fund is used to account for revenues collected to repay general obligation bonds. 

Proprietary Funds-are reported using the economic resources management focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting similar to the basis used for the government-wide financial statements. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded as the time the liability is incurred, regardless of when the related cash Flows 
take place, Investment earnings are reported as non-operating revenues. All assets and liabllities are recorded In 
the enterprise funds financial statements. The District applies Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) 
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, except 
those that conflict with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. 

Self-Insurance-Health fund-this fund is an internal service fund that accounts for medical coverage provided to 
the District's employees. 

Fiduciary Funds-are also reported using the economic resources measurement focus and t11e accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Private Purpose Trust Fund5'-the District also has two private-purpose trust funds, as student activity fund, which 
accounts for the extracurricular activities of its students, and an endowment fund which accounts for funds 
received for college scholarships for its graduating seniors. 

Non-major funds are: transportation fund, bus depreciation fund, lunch fund, tuition fund, retirement fund, adult 
education fund, traffic education fund, miscellaneous fund, compensated absences fund, technology fund, flex fund, 
building fund, building reserve fund, endowment fund, and the student activity fund. 

C. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

State law permits investment of District funds insured savings or time deposits, bank repurchase agreements, direct 
obligations of the U.S. Government, and the State's unified investment program. Investments are stated at 
estimated fair value which approximates cost. 

The Board directs that all District funds be invested in a prudent manner so as to achieve maximum economic 
benefit to the District. Funds not needed for current obligations may be invested in investment options as set out In 
Montana statutes whenever it is deemed advantageous to the District to do so. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES, continued 

D, INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENSES 

Inventories are considered to be immaterial and are not recorded. Expenditures made in the current year for costs 
attributable to future years are recorded as prepaid expenditures. These expenditures are recognized when used 
(consumption method), 

E. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes receivable are offset by deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. The District does not 
record an allowance for uncollectible taxes because it is considered to be immaterial. Tax levies are limited by a 
variety of funding formulas developed by the State, which are designed to equalize scl1ool funding throughout the 
state. 

Property taxes are levied in August of each fiscal year, based on assessments as of the prior January 1. Real 
property taxes are usually billed in October and are payable 50% on November 30 and 50% on May 31. Property 
taxes are maintained and collected by the County Treasurer, 

F. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets are carried at actual or estimated historical cost based on appraisals. Major additions and betterments 
with a cost in excess of $5,000 are recorded as additions to fixed assets, Repair and maintenance costs are not 
capitalized. Land is not depreciated, Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method and the estimated 
useful lives are as follows: 

Land Improvements 
Buildings and Improvements 
Equipment 

15-35 Years 
10-65 Years 

5-25 Years 

G. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Non-teaching District employees earn vacation ranging from 15 to 24 days per year depending on the individual's 
years of service. Vacation may be accumulated to a total not to exceed two times the maximum number of days 
earned annually. Sick leave is earned at a rate of one day per month for all District employees. Teaching staff are 
allowed to carry over a maximum of 100 sick days from the previous year. Upon retirement or termination, 
employees are paid for 100 percent of unused vacation leave and 25 percent of unused sick leave. Termination 
payments are made at the employee's current salary rate. Part-time employees are entitled to prorated benefits, 

H. EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVES 

Consist of payments for retirees health insurance costs for a specific period of time. 

I. COMPARATIVE TOTALS 

The government-wide financial statements and the internal service fund include prior-year comparative totals and 
are not at a level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with U.S. general accepted accounting 
principles. Accordingly, these totals should be in conjunction with the government-wide financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2011, from wl1ich they have been derived. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The District participates In the Missoula County Treasurer's investment program. Funds deposited with the County 
Treasurer are pooled and Invested In accordance with State law. Funds are withdrawn from the investment program 
as needed to pay warrants, Earnings are allocated to the District based on average month-end cash balances and 
are distributed monthly. It is not practical to determine the investment risk, collateral, or insurance coverage for the 
District's share of these pooled investments, Information about the pooled investments is included in the County's 
annual financial statements, Student activity trust funds are deposited in FDIC insured, Interest bearing, checking 
accounts, 

Internal service fund cash Is Invested as follows: 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Amount 

Federal Home Loan Note 1.00% September 30, 2012 $ 200,510 

Federal Home Loan Bond 2.50% January 18, 2016 150,273 

Cash 566,593 

Total $ 917,376 

The above Investments are stated at fair value. 

NOTE 3: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Due from other governments consists of federal grants of $47,439, state grants of $7,300, and a county grant of 
$10,163. other receivable consist of $6,982 from the District's insurance carrier for a refund of legal fees, $11,320 
due from Medicaid, $2,042 due from a private grant and $105 In lunch fees. 

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012 

Cost of Assets: 
Land $ 590,662 $ $ $ 590,662 
Land Improvements 728,139 13,720 741,859 
Buildings 27,471,177 8,452 27,479,629 
Equipment 2,669,982 13,465 2,683,447 

Total $ 31,459,960 $ 35,637 $ $ 31,495,597 
Accumulated Depreciation: 

Land Improvements $ (446,049) $ (30,929) $ $ (476,978) 
Buildings (4,911,041) (560,917) (5,471,958) 
Equipment (1,418,348) (201,888) (1,620,236) 

Total $ (6,775,438) $ (793,734) $ $ (7,569,172) 
Net Book Value $ 24,684,522 $ (758,097) $ $ 23,926,425 

DRAFT 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS, continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Regular Programs 

Student Transportation 

Extracurricular 
Operations and Maintenance 

School Food 

Business Administration 
Total Depreciation Expense 

$ 573,369 
150,129 

28,972 
10,932 

11,920 

17,471 

$ 792,793 

NOTE 5: DEFERRED REVENUE 

In the internal seivice fund, it includes $74,549 in pre-collect insurance premiums. 

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT 

Changes in general long-term debt during 2012 are as follows: 

Balance 

June 30, 2011 Increase Decrease 

Balance 

June 30, 2012 

Due Within 

One Year 

General Obligation Bonds: 

Series 2008 $ 3,380,000 $ $ 365,000 $ 3,015,000 $ 380,000 

Series 2007 13,725,000 350,000 13,375,000 365,000 

Lease Payable 23,179 8,862 14,317 8,861 

Compensated Absences 611,370 84,655 526,715 135,000 

Early Retirement Incentive 21,712 15,281 6,431 6,431 

Total $ 17,761,261 $ $ 823,798 $ 16,937,463 $ 895,292 

General Obligation Bonds-the District issued $4,000,000 of general obligation bonds in January 2008 to finance the 
District's capital projects. The interest rate on the bonds varies from 3.25% to 3.50%. Interest payments are paid 
semi-annually. Principal payments are due annually in varying amounts to July 1, 2018. The bonds maturing on or 
after July 1, 2014 are subject to early redemption at a price equal to the unpaid principal plus accrued interest. 
Payments are made from the debt service fund. 

The District issued $14,935,000 of general bonds in February 2007 to finance the District's capital projects. The 
interest rate on the bonds varies from 4.0% to 5.0%. Interest payments are paid semi-annually. Principal payments 
are due annually in varying amounts to July 1, 2027. The bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are subject to 
early redemption at a price equal to the unpaid principal plus accrued interest. Payments are made from the debt 
seivice fund. 

Capital Leases-in 2009 the District entered into a lease purchase agreement for copiers with a purchase option 
price of $43,166. The payment schedule is for 5 years (January 2009 through December 2013). The interest rate is 
4.93%. Payments are made from the general fund. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT, continued 

Early Retirement Incentive-in 2008 and 2009, the District offered an early retirement incentive program to eligible 
teachers and three employees accepted the program. Under the program, the District will pay the entire monthly 
health insurance premium for two employees over a five year period up to a total maximum of $25,000. For the 
third early retiree, the District will pay the retiree $5,000 each year for five years. Payments are made from the 
general fund. 

Compensated absence payments are made by the affected fund, usually the general fund; however, compensated 
absence payments can be made by the compensated absences fund, a special revenue fund. Vacation pay is 
classified as compensated absences due within one year, accrued sick leave is classified as non-current. 

Debt service requirements to maturity (including principal and interest) are as follows: 

Early 
Year Ended Capital Leases Retirement 
June 30 Principal Interest Incentive Total 

2013 $ 9,403 $ 597 $ 6,431 $ 16,431 
2014 4,9H 85 4,999 

Totals $ 14,317 $ 682 $ 6,431 $ 21,430 

Year Ended 2007 Bonds 2008 Bonds 

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

2013 $ 365,000 $ 567,906 $ 380,000 $ 96,363 $ 1,409,269 

2014 380,000 552,550 400,000 83,687 1,416,237 

2015 395,000 537,050 415,000 70,444 1,417,494 

2016 410,000 520,437 430,000 56,175 1,416,612 

2017 430,000 502,588 445,000 40,863 1,418,451 

2018 445,000 483,994 465,000 24,938 1,418,932 

2019 470,000 465,137 480,000 8,400 1,423,537 

2020 985,000 431,113 1,416,113 

2021 1,025,000 384,706 1,409,706 

2022 1,065,000 340,294 1,405,294 

2023 1,110,000 294,075 1,404,075 

2024 1,155,000 245,222 1,400,222 

2025 1,205,000 193,597 1,398,597 

2026 1,255,000 140,569 1,395,569 

2027 1,310,000 86,062 1,396,062 

2028 1,370,000 29,113 1,399,113 
Total $ 13,375,000 $ 5,774,413 $ 3,015,000 $ 380,870 $ 22,545,283 

Total debt seivlce to maturity for long-term debt is $$22,545,283. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 7: ESTIMATED RmREE HEALTH CARE COSTS 

State law (MCA 2-18-704) requires that retirees with at least five years of service and at least 50 years old are 
allowed to participate in the District's medical coverage plan until they become eligible for Medicare coverage. 
Retirees are required to pay the full premium for such coverage. The District commissioned an actuarial study in 
2010 of the potential liability and it was determined that there is no liability, 

NOTE 8: DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS AND DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

At June 30, 2011 there was a due to other funds In the miscellaneous fund, which was a major fund that year, of 
$277,000 and a corresponding amount of due from other funds in the bus depreciation fund, representing funds 
transferred to maintain a positive cash balance in the miscellaneous fund. At June 30, 2012 all borrowing had been 
re-paid. 

NOTE 9: GOVERNMENT-WIDE RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Restricted Net Assets-state law authorizes certain funds and establishes the criteria for property tax levies for 
specific purposes. The District classifies the net assets of these funds as restricted net assets. 

These funds and their net assets at June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Debt Service $ 1,321,577 
Bus Depreciation 347,820 
Retirement 320,122 
Transportation 96,768 
Adult Education 11,644 
Building Reserve 13,344 
Tuition 10,848 
Technology 11,492 

Total $ 2,133,615 

NOTE 10: GOVERNMENT FUND BALANCE REPORTING 

The District implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, in 2011. Restricted fund balances are reported in the aggregate 
on the face of the balance sheet. Of the total, the amount that Is restricted due to the external requirements is 
$XX,XXX. The remainder of $X,XXX,XXX Is restricted by state law. 

The District spends restricted amounts first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, or 
unassigned amounts are available, the District spends committed first, then assigned, and lastly, unassigned funds. 

Committed funds must be designated by the District Board and assigned funds are designated by the 
Superintendent as authorized by the District Board. There were not committed funds at June 30, 2012, 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT, continued 

The District purchases commercial Insurance for claims in excess of medical coverage provided by the fund. Dental 
expenses are paid per covered person up to $1,000 per year. Any amount above this is paid by the participants. 
The fund also provides life and disability insurance for District employees. 

Changes in medical claims liabilities were as follows: 

Claims Liability, June 30, 2011 $ 96,397 

Claims Incurred in 2012 
Claims Paid in 2012 
Claims Liability, June 30, 2012 $ 96,397 

Prior to the fiscal year end, the District pays the health insurance premiums for July and August of the next fiscal 
year. These advance premium payments are reported as deferred revenue in the fund balance sheet and as 
accounts payable in the statement of net assets. 
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F1enchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Fllli!ndal Statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 10: GOVERNMENT FUND BAlNICE REPORTING, cantlnued 

Restricted fund balanc<J a.,nslsts of the fol!owlng: 

Restricted for expeo<Jlture ielatcd to; 
Debtser,ice ~ 1,321,577 
Tran5l)OrtoUon 442,872 
Retirement 320,122,~..- 190,760 
Compensated absences 39,910 
Operal!o<'I aoo malnlem11,c;e 12,9'!8 
Adu~ education 11,6'14 
Tuition 10,849 
Traffic education 16,203 
Sdioo! food 12,353 
Tcctmolc,gv 11,492 

Total restricted fund balanw $ 2,390,730 

Asslgrnid fund balanoo rorisist of lll<,l following; 

Assigned for encumbraw-.es: 
General fund S6ll,SOS 
Non-major fl'f!ds 57,465 

Total encumbnn,;e, ~ 
A5Slgned for operation and maintenance ~ 
Assigned for <::apl1al projects 4,724 

Total aS51g'1m fll'ld b;Jlaoce $ 687,816 

Una.signed fund bola nee carisist of the following: 
General fl.lOO $ 771,':Hl 

Total QO\~mment;,I fund l>atana: $ 3,850,503 

NOTI: 11: RETIREMENT PLANS 

~e Dis~~~ Participates In two statewide, ma~datory,_cost-sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit reUrement 
.,.,ns W , cover ~11 e':"ployees, exceptcertarn substirute teachers and part-time, nan-teaching employees. The 
Moolaoa Teachcrs_ Retirement Syatem {MTRS) covers leaching employees, lndudlrig prindp.lls and su r!ntenden 5 
The t·]ontana Public fm~loyees' Retirement System (M?ERS) covers other employees. The plans are e~bllshed : · 

~@~~:::;~;:::;:~~~,:.th~ State of Montana. The plans provide retirement, disability, and death beneflt5 

Frenchtown Schoo\ District 
Missoula County, Montarta 

Notes to the Flnandal statements 
June 30, 2012 

NOTE 11: RETIREMENT PLANS, continued 

The ambibullon r.ites, expressed as a percentage of w1ered payroll, were as follows: 

Employer Emp!o~ State Tot~! 
7.47% 7.15% 2.49% 17.11% 

MPERS 6.00% 6.',0% D.31% M.07% 

The amounl,S contributed to MTRS and MPERS dur1fl9 the years ended iune 30, 2010, 2011 and 20l2 were equal to 
the requTred contribulioll af e,ictJ year. The amounts contributed by bolh \he District and Its employees (lndudlng 
addiUoool ~oluntary contributions by employees as pc1milted by state law) wc,e as follmvs: 

20LO 20l\ 2012 

Hn<S B71,43S $" B'i6,701 $ 763,272 

MPERS 156,272 152,012 154,557 

Total ~$ 1,008,713 ~~ 

The Sta!e"s contribution 1a the plans In 2012 were $)00(,XXX for MTRS and $X,XXX for MPERS. This on·Wialf--of 
payment w11s induded In revenue and expenditures ln lhe governmental fund5 statemen\5 In the other 
gO'lemmenta\ funds column. 

Bolh plans i'.isue a pu~\ldy av,,llable finarv;ial n.,port that !ncll.ldcs financial statements ~nd required supplementary 
information for the plans. Those re[l!J,15 may Ire obtained from the following: 

MT Public Employees Retirement System 
P.O. Box 200139 P.0.{!o;:200131 
1500 fast Sixth Avenue 

MT Te.tchcr; Retirement System 

100 North Park Ave, Su~e 200 
Htllena, MT 56920-0139 Helena, MT 59520·0131 
Telephone: {406) 444-3134 Telephone: {406) 444·3154 

NOTE 12: RISK M/\NAGEMENT 

The Oistrlct @ces a number of ri,l\5 ln<:ludlng (l} loss or damage ta property, (2) general l.abillty, (3) workers 
compensation, and (4) employea medical !n5urance. Commercial lnsur.inro polkies are purcha>l.'d for !oss or 
domage to property, and geneml llabmty. 

The District participate, In a statewide puhllc risk pooi the Montana Schools Group Workers Compensation Risk 
Retention Program (WCRRP), for worker:; compensation coverage. Apprm:imately 200 school districts participate !n 
WCRRP. All school districts partldpants in this pool arejolntly and severally liable for the liabilities of !his publ!c ~sk 
pool. Tlie pool issues audited finanda\ statement,. Information cbout the amount of claim llabilitles, charges in 
claims l!abllitie>, and amount of claims P3id, oper.iting results and other information Is available at l South Montana 
Avenue, Helena, MT 59601. 

The Districts selHfl'iures s001e medk.11, dental, and vision health coverage. Th<S activity is ac;counled for fn an 
intEmal service fund. The self-Insurance prog@m provides coverage for up ta $45,000 for the mfflrnl ~penses of 
each partidP3Urig employee, rcti~, and familv membe,. 

" 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

General Fund-Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Encumbrances-
Budget to Actual 

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Fund 
Original and GMP Finanlcal 

Final Budget Actual Variance ADJ Statement 

Revneues 

District property taxes $ 1,833,419 $ 1,815,516 $ (17,903) $ $ 1,815,516 

Intergovermental: 
State equalization 5,939,592 5,935,731 (3,861) 5,935,731 

State other 
Federal payments 3,862 3,862 3,862 

Interest 6,768 1,962 (4,806) 1,962 

Other 24,876 16,108 (8,768) 16,108 

Total reveneues $ 7,804,655 $ 7,773,179 $ (31,476) $ $ 7,773,179 

Expenditures 
Cun-ent operations: 

Instruction: 
Regular program $ 4,155,260 $ 4,558,748 $ 403,488 $ (140,493) $ 4,418,255 

Spelcal program 9 35,748 35,739 844 36,592 

Support services 1,749,851 1,305,503 (444,348) (59,016) 1,246,487 

Administration: 
Schools 
General 348,446 346,906 (1,540) 619 347,525 

Finanica\ 
Operations and maintenance 1,226,423 l,229,410 2,987 (39,552) 1,189,858 

School food 62,100 62,204 104 (679) 61,525 

Extracurricular 308,161 304,896 (3,265) (3,858) 301,038 

Capital outlay 20,900 25,085 4,185 25,085 

Debt service 10,000 10,000 15,282 25,282 

Total expenditures $ 7,881,150 $ 7,878,500 $ (2,650) $ (226,853) $ 7,651,647 

Excess/ (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures $ (76,495) $ (105,321) $ (28,826) $ 121,532 

and encumbrances 

Transfers In (out) $ (47,294) $ (35,115) $ 12,179 $ (35,115) 

Excess/(deficleny) of revenues over expenditures $ (123,789) $ (140,436) $ (16,647) $ 86,417 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Budget and Actual Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

State law requires the District to prepare budgets for certain funds, generally funds supported by 
property tax revenues, Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, Budgeted 
fund expenditures are limited by State law to the total budgeted amount which may be amended as 
defined by State law. There were no budget amendments In 2012. 

General fund budgets are based on the State of Montana's foundation program which is based primarily 
on enrollment. Budgets of other funds are based on expected revenues and expenditures. The Board 
approves the original budget by the second Monday in August. 

State law permits the inclusion of obligations (encumbrances) for construction-in-progress and the 
purchase of personal property as expenditures for budget purposes. There were encumbrances In the 
general fund of $568,505 at June 30, 2012 and $341,653 at June 30, 2011. 

State law requires only that a fund's total expenditures not exceed total budgeted expenditures. 

Reserved Fund Bal,mces-State law permits a reserve for operations in certain budgeted funds, The 
maximum reserve for operations permitted for the District, which is a percentage of the subsequent 
year's budgeted expenditures, and the actual reserves at June 30, 2011 are as follows: 

Actual Allowed 
General Fund 10% 10% 

Transportation Fund 9.78% 20% 

Retirement Fund 35% 35% 

Adult Education 0% 35% 

State law also permits the District to reserve the collection of protested and delinquent property taxes 
In the general fund. There were no such reserves in 2012. 

GAAP adjustments include a change In encumbrances $226,853 and reclassification of $15,281 from 
regular instruction to debt service for payments of early retirement obligations. 

31 



Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

CFDA Project Grant 

Project Title Number Number Award Expenditures 

Department of Agriculture 

State Administered-Office of Public Instruction 

Child Nutrition Program: 

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A N/A $ 

School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A N/A 
Food Distribution-commodities 10.555 N/A N/A 

Total Department of Agriculture $ _____ 

Department of Education 

Federally Administered 

Alcohol Abuse Reduction Grant 84.184A Q184A080203 $ - $ -----
State Administered-Office of Public Instruction 

Title I, Part A Cluster: 

Title I, Part A Improving Basic Programs 84.010 32-0599-31-11 $ 

ARRA-Title I, Part A Improving Basic Programs 84.389 32-0599-91-10 $ 

Total Title I, Part A Cluster $ -----
Special Education Cluster: 

IDEA-Part B Children with Disabilities 84.027 32-0599-77-11 $ $ 

IDEA-Preschool 84.173A 32-0599-79-11 $ 

ARRA-IDEA B Children with Disabilities 84.391 32-0599-02-10 $ 

Total Special Education Cluster IDEA s____ 
Carl Perkins-Vo Ed 84.048A 32-0599-81-11 $ $ 

Title IV, Part A, Safe and Drug Free Schools 84. 186A 32-0599-16-10 $ s 
Title II, Part D, Education Technology 84.318X 32-0599-60-11 $ $ 

Title II, Part A, Teacher/Principle Trng/Recruit 84.367A 32-0599-14-10 $ $ 

Title JI, Part A, Teacher/Principle Trng/Recruit 84.367A 32-0599-14-11 $ $ 

ARRA-State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 84.397 N/A $ $ 

ARM-Education Jobs Fund 84.410 N/A $ $ -----
Total State Administered-Office of Public Instruction $ _____ 

Total Department of Education $ ____ 

Total Federal Awards $==== 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

1. Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies used in preparing the schedule of expenditure of federal awards are the 
same as those used in the preparation of the fund financial statements as descried in Note 1.B to 
the financial statements (fund financial statements) except that scl1ool lunch and breakfast 
federal reimbursement revenues are food commodities received are also reported as 
expenditures. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Schedule of School District Enrollment 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Fall Enrollment-October 2011 
Pre-Kindergarten 
Kindergarten 
Grades 1·6 
Grades 7 &8 
Grades 9-12 

Combined Total 

School 
Records 

587 
186 
393 

1,166 

Enrollment 
Records 

587 
186 
393 

1,166 

Variance 

Spring Enrollment-February 2012 
Pre-Kindergarten 
Kindergarten 
Grades 1-6 
Grades 7 & 8 
Grades 9-12 

Combined Total 

579 
186 
385 

1,150 

579 
186 
385 

1,150 

579 
186 
385 

1,150 

Part-time Enrollment: 
High School (enrolled 360-539 hours per year) 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Extracurricular Fund-Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Equity 

Organization 
"F11 Club 
50/50 Fund Raiser 
Academic Challenge 
Activities 

$ 

Alternative Education 
Art Club 
Band 
BBB Fund Raiser 
Box Top Education 
Boys Basketba II 
Candy Machine 
Cheerleaders 
Choir 
Class of 2015 
Class of 2014 
Class of 2013 
Class of 2012 
Class of 2011 
Community Leadership 
Concessions 
Creative Film Club 
Cross Country 
Cross Country Fund Raiser 
Elementary P.E. Fund 
Elementary Special Ed. Projects 
Elementary Comp For Education 
Elementary Recycling 
Environmental Issues 
FCCLA 
Football Gold Card Fund Raiser 
Football 
Foreign Language Club 
GBB Fund Raiser 
Girls Basketball 
Golf Fund Raiser 

Grade School Activities 
Home Economics 
In & Out 
Industrial Tech Club 
Jr. High Festival 
JH GBB Fundraiser 

Sub-Total 
(continued on next page) 

$ 

by Student Activity 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Balance 
June 301 2011 Revenues Expenditures 

Transfers 
In (Out) 

Balance 
June 30, 2012 

33 $ 
106 
790 

27,582 
34 
81 

801 

1,217 

924 
1,195 

718 

200 
224 

3,741 
467 
191 

11,932 
120 

319 
1,420 

751 

2,298 
239 

73 
55 

105 

1,452 
1,320 

11 

1,698 
39 

123 
740 

886 

$ $ $ 33 
106 

11,928 11,332 1,386 
8,416 14,108 (392) 21,498 

34 

135 150 66 

12,511 11,979 1,333 

438 438 
289 1,506 

4,753 3,452 {1,301) 

2,634 1,967 {956) 635 

1,494 1,522 376 1,543 

14,091 14,879 339 269 

9 200 191 

233 127 306 

3,314 1,564 (102) 1,872 

1,629 3,588 1,782 
467 
191 

26,979 23,910 15,001 
120 

230 626 396 

280 39 
1,420 

394 378 767 

1,001 1,297 

100 339 
73 

1,973 1,862 166 
1,380 1,466 19 

6,622 4,842 (1,780) 
1,452 

7,852 5,830 3,342 

4,235 3,557 (678) 
11 

6,218 5,115 2,801 
218 179 

1,762 1,788 97 

716 24 
886 

235 235 

61,885 $ 119,845 $ 116,704 $ (3,719) $ 61,307 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Extracurricular Fund-Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Equity 
by Student Activity 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Balance Transfers B;ilance 

Organization June 30, 2011 Revenues Expenditures In (Out) June 30, 2012 

(continued from previous page) 
Sub-Total $ 61,885 $ 119,845 $ 116,704 $ (3,719) $ 61,307 

Jr. High Lounge/Pop 265 525 505 285 

JH Volleyball Fundraiser 216 49 167 

JMG (Jobs for MT Grads) 705 388 1,036 57 

Jr. High Activities 389 3,373 3,284 478 

Jr. High Student Council 1,846 11,444 11,194 (200) 1,896 

Key Club 1,332 2,174 3,188 500 818 

Kiva 33 33 

Lock Deposit Account 1,450 10 1,460 

Music 557 511 1,206 138 

National Honor Society 26 26 

Newspaper 312 64 248 

NHS Scholarship 1,522 676 1,752 456 902 

Parking Permits 660 286 300 646 

Pep Club 172 300 49 423 

Resale 40 3,595 3,427 208 

S.A.D.D. 82 82 

S.C. Improvement Fund 4,869 198 413 (2,195) 2,459 

Softball Fund Raiser 3,810 3,471 2,154 5,127 

School Play 713 4,879 5,672 875 795 

Soccer 2,387 2,710 323 

Soccer Fund Raiser-Boys 245 461 404 302 

Soccer Fund Raiser-Girls 490 404 86 

Softball 4,567 6,650 2,083 

Speech & Drama 324 154 (170) 

Spirit & Pride 117 977 200 1,027 1,921 

Student Council 3,384 5,572 6,553 102 2,505 

Student Store 1,026 (1,026) 

Track 640 1,309 669 
Track Facilities 164 164 
Vietnam Symposium 143 143 
Volleyball 3,178 4,140 962 
Volleyball Fund Raiser 147 4,217 3,179 1,185 
WR Fund Raiser 1,400 25 1,425 
Wrestling 1,776 1,947 171 
Yearbook 7,798 4,183 6,449 5,532 

Total $ 95,033 $ 180,747 $ 186,554 $ (4) $ 89,222 

oR~f'l 
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Frenchtown Scl1ool District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Supplemental Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Student Enrollment 

The fall enrollment of K-12 students, for the years ended June 30, attending the Districts schools has 
been as follows: 

Fall Percentage 
Enrollment Change 

October 2004 1,203 

Change 53 4.4% 

October 2005 1,256 

Change (26) (2.1)% 

October 2006 1,230 

Change 4 0.3% 

October 2007 1,234 

Change 15 1.2% 

October 2008 1,249 

Change (3) (0,2)% 

October 2009 1,246 

Change (64) (5.1)% 

October 2010 1,182 

Change (16) (1.4)% 

October 2011 1,166 

School District Taxable Valuations 

Taxable 

Valuation as 

Assessed a Percent of 

(Market) Taxable Assessed 

Valuation Valuation Valuation 

Janua,y 1, 2001 $ 378,900,000 $ 12,300,000 3.25% 

January 1, 2002 $ 390,600,000 $ 12,400,000 3.17% 

January 1, 2003 $ 393,700,000 $ 12,400,000 3.15% 

January 1, 2004 $ 406,800,000 $ 12,500,000 3.07% 

January 1, 2005 $ 418,100,000 $ 13,200,000 3.16% 

January 1, 2006 $ 458,600,000 $ 13,700,000 2.99°/ci 

January 1, 2007 $ 444,200,000 $ 13,100,000 2.95% 

January 1, 2008 $ 461,500,000 $ 13,500,000 2.93% 

January 1, 2009 $ 473,400,000 $ 13,300,000 2.81% 

January 1, 2010 s 446,100,000 $ 11,800,000 2.65% 

January 1, 2011 $ 420,900,000 $ 10,900,000 2.59% 

January 1, 2012 $ $ 

\)'{-l t\f ,,, 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Supplemental Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

3The County Treasurer did not bill for certain tax levies in 2003; the levies were billed in 2004, 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Supplemental Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

School District Tax Levies {in mills) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

Taxing Entity 2007 2008 2009 I 2010 2011 2012 2013 

School District No.40 

General Fund 156,20 156,80 161.39 155,71 164,70 167.60 166.84 

Transportation 11.46 14.18 20.46 20.70 !6.2S 17.32 20.47 

Debt Service 10,15 112,29 74.04 98,50 100,33 100,93 104.46 

Bus Depreciation 6.66 4,88 9.60 8.25 6.31 0,69 0.71 

Building Reser\le 3.64 3.81 4,02 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 

Technology 2.55 2.67 2,81 2.62 2.88 3.20 3, 17 

Adult Education 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total School District 190,66 294,63 274,32 287.78 290.47 289.74 295,65 

Stat Scl1ool Levy 144.26 144,26 145.64 144.62 143.45 142.50 102,50 

District Levy 190.66 294.63 274,32 285,78 290.47 289,74 289.74 

State Levy-University 6,00 6.00 6,00 6.00 6.00 6,00 6.00 

County 168, 14 168. 14 176.57 174.74 175,58 177.91 44.44 

Frenchtown Rural Fire District & Otlier 42.08 136, 19 46.46 46.46 46.46 46.46 46.46 

Total 551.14 749,22 648,99 657,60 661.96 662,61 489.14 

'2009 mill value amounts include a total of 14.55 aclclilior1dl mills to correct a tax levy calculation error 
regarding a taxable valuation error in 2007. 

Tax Collections 

Current Total 

Total Tax Current Collections as a Total Tax Collections as a 

Fiscal Year Levy Collections Percent of Levy Collections I Percent of Levy 

2011/12 $ $ $ 
2

2010/11 $ 3,408,030 $ 3,227,404 94.7% $ 3,465,967 101.7% 

2009/10 $ 3,811,241 $ 3,264,974 85.7% $ 3,764,278 98.8% 

2008/09 $ 3,511,719 $ 2,944,114 83.8% $ 3,155,419 89.9% 

2007/08 $ 3,862,636 $ 3,598,797 93.2% $ 3,670,049 95.0% 

2006/07 $ 2,396,146 $ 2,194,796 91.6% $ 2,352,583 98.1% 

2005/06 $ 2,498,907 $ 2,380,935 95.3% $ 2,490,662 99.7% 

2004/05 $ 2,302,229 $ 2,060,084 89.5% $ 2,332,445 101.3% 

2003/04 $ 2,120,959 $ 2,012,407 94,9% $ 2,375,784 112,0% 
3 

2002/03 $ 2,003,714 $ 1,566,753 78.2% $ 1,653,285 82.5% 

101.5%2001/02 $ 1,565,337 $ 1,463,827 93.5% $ 1,589,086 

1 Total tax collection figures include delinquencies from prior years, plus correction tax levy for 2003, 

but excludes penalty and interest. 

2 Levied amount differed from budgeted amount due to adjustments made by the County between the .,_,, 

1
,, 

budgeting process and the actual levy. O"f'); fft, t.,,
' ~lj.\_ff"'%.ll 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Supplemental Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Major Taxpayers 

The taxable values of the District's ten largest taxpayers are as follows: 

January 1, 2012 Percent of Total 

Taxpayer Business Taxable Value Taxable Value 

Green Development Redevelopment $ 424,029 22.61 

Montana Rail Link Railroad 335,467 17.89 

Northwestern Energy Gas and Electric Utility 240,226 12.81 

Missoula Electric Coop Electric Utility 239,779 12.78 

Montana Steward LLC Truck Stop 133,409 7.11 

Qwest Corporation Tele-Communications 123,626 6.59 

Celloco Partnership DBA Verizon Wireless Tele-Communications 57,772 3.08 

Puget Sound Energy Inc Gas and Electric Utility 44,924 2.40 

4M Family Limited Partnership Truck Stop (Muralts) 42,171 2.25 

Patchy, Inc. Developer-Real Estate 40,049 2.14 

Waldo Williams Development LLP Developer-Real Estate 39,940 2.13 

Nature Conservancy {The) Non-Profit 39,904 2.13 

Ockler Cornerstone LLC Golf Course 39,856 2.13 

GOS! Development Inc Developer-Real Estate 37,520 2.00 

AT&T Mobility Tele-Communications 36,815 1.96 

Total $ 1,875,487 100.00 

Maximum Bonded Indebtedness 

State law permits a maximum bonded Indebtedness for the school district of 100% of the District's 
taxable valuation at June 30, 2012 of $XXXXXXX, However, for school districts that qualify for 
guaranteed tax base aid, the law permits maximum bonded Indebtedness equal to 50% of the 
statewide taxable valuation per student time's average number belonging (ANB). 

Maximum bonded indebtedness under this exception is: 

Statewide Average Maximum 

Taxable Value Number Belongings Percent Bonded 
Per Student June 30, 2012 Allowed Indebtedness 

High School $ 50% $ 

Elementary $ 50% 

Maximum Bonded Indebtedness Allowed 
Less: 

Outstanding Bonds at June 30, 2012 
Lease Payable at June 30, 2012 

Maximum Bonded Indebtedness Available $==== 
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COTE & ASSOCIATES, CPA, PLLC 
Phone, 406-S4 3-8088 1225 ClcvelanJ, Suite 1
Faxo 406-721-9357 P.O. Box 430 

Missoula, MT 59806 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENTAUDillNG STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Frenchtown School District No. 40 
Missoula County 
Frenchtown, Montana 

I have audited the financial statements of the Frenchtown School District (District), Missoula County, 
Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, I have issued my report thereon dated 
February 26, 2013. l conducted my audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective Internal control 
over financial reporting. 

In planning and performing my audit, I considered the District's Internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on· the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's basic financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies In 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. As 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings, I identified a deficiency in internal control over 
financial reporting that I consider to be a material deficiency. 

COMPLlANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free 
of material misstatements, I performed tests of its compliance witl1 certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly I do not 
express such an opinion. The results of my tests dis::sed one instance of noncompliance~\~~Y1 



matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which is described 
In the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2012-1. 

The District's response to findings in my audit will be submitted separately from this report. I did not 
audit the District's response and, accordingly I express no opinion on it. 

This report Is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and council, management, 
Montana Department of Administration and pass through entities and Is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Cote & Associate~~ PLLC 

Febru~2~ 
Missou~ntana 
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COTE & ASSOCIATES, CPA, PLLC 

\'\ 40" 54' 0088 1225 Cleveland, Suite l 
,one: 0 · .>·v PO Box 430 

fax: 406-721-9357 Missoul.", MT 59806 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNALCONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 -

Board of Trustees 
Frenchtown School District No. 40 
Missoula County 
Frenchtown, MT 

COMPLIANCE 

We have audited the compliance of School District No.40 (District) with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget {0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of 
Its major federal programs for the years ended June 30, 2012. The Town's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of law, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs ls the 
responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town's compliance based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A·133, Audits ofStates, local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the Town's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
legal determination of the Town's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable 
to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 301 2012. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

The management of the District ls responsible for establishing and maintaining effective Internal control over compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control 
over compliance. 

our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph of 
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the District's internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
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A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's 
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the 
District's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combinatio1 of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented or detected by the Town's internal control. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, Trustees, state and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 
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Frenchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Summary of Auditor's Results 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the Frenchtown School 
District No. 40 (District), 

2, No deficiencies were disclosed in the report on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of 
financial statements performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. One instance of noncompliance was disclosed in the report on compliance and other matters based on an audit of 
financial statements performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. See 2012-1. 

4. The auditor's report on compliance for the major fede<al programs for the District expresses an unqualified 
opinion on all major federal programs. 

5, No material weaknesses were disclosed In the report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major 
program In accordance with 0MB Circular A-133. 

6. No deficiencies were disclosed In the report on Internal Control Over Compliance with requirements applicable to 
each major program in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133. 

7. There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of 0MB Circular A-
133. 

8. The programs tested as major programs were: 

Department of Agriculture- Child Nutrition Cluster-CFDA 10.553/10.555 
Special Education Cluster- IDEA-CFDA- 84,027, 84.173A, 84.391 

9. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B Programs was: 

Type A Programs: $ 300,000 or more 
Type B Programs $ 300,000 or less 

10. The District did not qualify as a low risk auditee 

oRAfl 
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2012-1 

Prcnchtown School District 
Missoula County, Montana 

Schedule of Findings und Questioned Costs and "Prior Audit Findings 
Forthe Year Ended June 30.2012 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

Criteria: School Districts are limited to 3-year leases for real and personal property. (MCA 
20-6-609 and 20-10-110). 

Condition: During the year ended June 30, 2012 Frenchtown School District No. 40 
(District) made payments for months 31-42 of a 60 month (5 year) lease for copiers. 

Cause: Unknown, presumably this was approved by the Board of Trustees prior to the 
beginning of the lease In fiscal 2008-09. 

Recommendation: By the time of audit the District only had approximately twelve months 
payments left so cancelling the lease is probably not advisable; howeve( this finding will 
remain on the June 30, 2013 audit report. 

For the future the District needs to be aware of the 3 year restrictions on leases. 

REPORT ON PRIOR FINDINGS 

No findings in the year ended June 30, 2011 

45 



What You Should Know about 
Your Local Government's Finances 

A Guide to Financial Statements 

2nd Edition 

Dean Michael Mead 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
•·~AC'D of the Financial Accounting Foundation 
r,.....~ 401 Merritt 7, PO Box 5116, Norwalk, Connecticut 06856-5116 
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THIS GUIDE 

ONE. \1/HAT Is So IMPORTANT ABOL'":!" Gov'J.::RNME:S.T FINAc'sCLU STATEMENTS? 

go,ernments are unlike private-sector businesses-governments do not charge citizens directly for 
sen-ices they receive but, rather, finance services \\~th tmces and other fees applied generally to the 

e citizens have little choice about paying these tru<es and fees, and because it is not always clear how 
.."'·, =es citizens pay relate to the services they receive, govemments Jnust take special care to demonstrate 

they have been accountable to the public. 
cia1 statements are an important way for governments to demonstrate their accountability and to 

nde information thatis useful for people to make decisions. 

Two. INFORMATION ABOUT THE WIHOLE GO\'ER,'i~lE"\:1' 

'.:: The first two financial statements provide comprehensive information about your entire government. 
You can use tl1e information in the stateJJJenl ef netposition to: 

Identify tile value of things your government owns (assets), the amounts it owes to otllers (liabilities), 
amounts received and paid in the past that are actually related to future periods (deferred inflows and 
outflows), and what is left (net position) after liabilities have been satisfied 
Determine if your government's fiscal status is improving or declining 
Assess your government's ability to cover its costs and to continue financing services in the future, and 
Find out what resources your government has available for providing new services or starting new.• 
programs.· 

You can use tile information in the slatenmli ef aclivitie.r to: 
Leam where your government gets resources and whatit uses them for 
Find out what it costs your government to provide sen~ces 
Determine the extent to which services cover their own costs with user fees, charges, and grnnts 

Identify out-of-the--orclinary costs and mmsual sources of funding, and 
Discover if sufficient resources were raised during the year to cover costs or if there was a shottfall, 

PART THREE. DETAILED lKFOR~l.ATION ABOLT ~"{o,:R GoYEl".).i:\iE,..;T's FUNDS 

• The f11nrl ftnandal stale,mnts provide information about the individual activities of your government, dividing 
them into three parts-governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. 

• You can use tl1e information in thegovemmmtalflmrls statements to: 
Determine your government's short-term financing needs and assess its capacity to meet tllem, and 

Assess your government's short-run ability to balance inflows of resources with outflows to pay for 

services. 

• You can use the information in the propdetmy_ftmrls s!(ltements to analyze the activities of your government that 
are business-like, such as utilities. 

e You can use the information in the jirlucit1~)' jimds statements to learn about the resources your government 
manages or holds on behalf of otllers, such as employee pension funds. 
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You can use the information in the rompomml units slr1tements to examine the legally separate entities for which 

r:_½.e elected officials of your government are linancially accountable. 

Your government's notes disclose additional information that is essential to representing its financial status 

accurately and completely-they are an integral pan of the financial statements. 

You can learn from the notes, among other things; 

Your governtnent's significant accounting methods and asswnpcions 
The types of invesu11ents it has made and i:he potential risk of loss associated 'with them 

Ho\V much yotu: government is owed and by \vhom 

How mucb your govcrnn1ent owes and to \vhom 

The approxJJnate cost of nsing capital assets to provide services 

A...mounts your government is obligarecl ro provide for public employee pensions and retiree health 

insurance 
How assets set aside in retiremenr pbns compare with the amounts nmr government is obligated to 

provide to tff1ployees and retirees, and i. 

Financial activ-ir:,.· among your government's funds, 

0 ,\lanagement's discussion and analysis G\'LD&t\) is a narrative overvie\v of the financial state1nents, prepared 

by the finance officials of your government, which appears before the linancial statements. :MD&A prepares 

you to use the financial statements more knowledgeablv and capablv by: 
Giving you a sum.mary analysis of your government's financial health based on the information in the 

statements, and 

Highlighting irnportant financial issues. 
c Your government presents a budgetar? compatison for its general fun<l and each major special revenue fund 

for which it legally adopts a budget to help vou: 

Judge your government's cornpliance \Vith its budgc:.L, and 

Assess your governn-ienr's fmanciaJ management capacity. 
e lf your government provides information about the financial srnrus of its pension and retiree health insurance 

plans, you can use it to: 
Determine \vhether the plan's :1ssets are sufflcienr to finance retirement benefits, and 

Compare the contributions required from your govcnunent, based on actuarial computations, with the 

actual amounts it contributed. 
o Tf your government provides information about its bridges, roads, and other infrastructure assets, you can 

use it to determine: 

lf the condirjon of infrastructure is Unprovi11g or deteriorating, anJ 

How the estlnuted cost of main milling infrastructtuc assets compares to \vhat your government actually 

spent. 



HlGHUGHTS OF THIS GUIDE 

PART SIX. OTHER 1:-.;FOR;',-L\TlON "\/01.__· !Vi.A\" GET \YIT:2 T~E ft):A?'-:CI:'tL STATE;-..-IENTS 

c Your government may include its basic financial staterr1ents in a comprehensive annual financial reporti 

where you can find additional supporting information such as: 
Your government's structure and chief officials (introductory section) 
Statements that offer more detailed data than is included in the basic financial statements (financial 

section), and 
Financial, economic, and demographic data for the past 10 vears that vou may find useful for analyzing 

financial statements (statistical section). 
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THE BASICS OF ANALYZING GOVERNMENT 
FINANCESI;[ 

"':'"-=e information in your government's financial srntements \viii not sirn~ 
?-"? Yolunteer ans\vers co your c1uestions--you bavc to make lt talk. 
T=-e process of drawing meaning from financial statement dala can 
::.C called FINANCIAL ANALYSIS. In most cases, analytical techniques utiljze 

.=.".\.~\!CIAL RATIOS-indicative figures created by dividing one number imo an

:_.~er. This appendi.-x presents some ratios that may be app]jed ro govcrn
·menr statemerns, to give you some basic e9uiprnenc to put in rour analyti
cal toolbox. But before we power up these tools and start hacking away at 

f::~set of financial statements1 \Ve should discuss the proper use and cir~ of 

Jmese tools. 
\\li. 
r-}:': 

CAVEATS OF FIN,\o,CJAL A_-,;Af..YSIS 

It is important to keep in n1ind that financial statement analysis is more of 

an art form than a science. 1'here are not many absolutes when it comes to 

a..:;sessing the financial status of a governmem because different people are 

interested in different aspects of finIDcial health, Wlh.ile some tr1ay be con

cerned with the:rcost of services, others nuy be focused on a government's 
ability to repay long-term debt, and scill others may want to look at the short

term availability of cash. Furthermore, cYcn if t\VO people are interested in 
the same financial issue) their judgmems remain subjective and therefore are 

likely to be different. In other words, une person mav consider a S10,000 
increase in net po~ition ro be acceptable, while another may believe it is in

sufficient for a gover111nent's needs. \\'ho is right? The only suitable answer 

may be, "It depends...." 

Fortunately, there are ways to ensure the validity of the conclusions you 
drmv from the results of your analycicaJ work. Others may disagree with 

your conclusions, but they cannot impugn your methods if you are mindful 
of four facts. First) Jh{' d(finii10;1s t.:l jintmtid i"!<fio_, c1r:' JJol sd in sf(t!lt. Different 

people may employ different equations but caU them by the same name. For 

instance, some analysts ad<l receivables to the cash and investments in the 

numerator of the quick ratio (described below). If ,·ou are presented with 

ratio information, you should be careful to ask ho\\" it was calculated. Sll1U

larly, you should take care to specify the components of the ratios you use 

in vour own analvses. 
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APPENDIX C 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS is the act of 
converting the numbers in financial 
statements into a form upon which 
specific decisions can be based 



APPENDIX C 

(0'.1,!MO"'-:-SIZE RATIOS 

Comn10n-size ratios serve two valuable purposes. First, they can provide 

a quick overview of the finances of your government and how rhey ha,·e 
changed since last year. Did assets grow or shrink? \Vere taxes the source of 

a larger or smaller share of revenue? Second, they put the financial data of 
your goverrunent in a form thar can be compared \,rich other governn1ents, 

regarclless of how big they are (hence the name to1m11011-size). In adclicion, 

tht)' ran he applied lo ,,i,tua/fy a11y k111d of Jim111a,1I slate111e11/ i1rformaflo11. There 

are two kinds of common-size tatios--perccntage change and percentage 

distribution. 

Percentage change represents the m11g11ih1de of change in a parcicula.r item, 

rather than the aggregate dollar difference from one year to the next. Con

sider these assets from Figure l I wl-ucb is in Part Two: 

2010 2011 
Dollar 

Change 
Percentage 

Change 

Capital assets $309,719,154 $321,411,511 $11,692,357 3.78% 

Receivables $10,052,465 $16,442,747 $6,390,282 63.57% 

Capital assets incrf'::ISf'.d S'I 1.7 mlllion bet\veen 20'10 and 201 'l, while receiv-
ables increased by a smaller S6.4 million. f--Iowever, the percentage changes 

show that, while the dollar growtJ1 for receivables was smaller, relative to 
total reccivabib the change was very significant-an increase of almost 64 
percent. Growth on such a scale might lead you to look furtlier in that area 

to determine what happened and wheci1cr it has an\' implications for Local 

City's finances_ Percentage change is calculated using this formula: 

Insert the nwnbers for receivables: 

Percenrnge distribution sho,vs rhe portion of a rornJ represemcd by rhe indj

odual elements comprising the total. Consider a h)potheticaJ set of figures. 

It probably is not meaningfrtl to know that the Citr oC J.argc had SI hillio/1 

of accounts receivable and the Village of Small had S1 111i//20//. But knowing 

that accounts receivable represented 3 percent of total assets in Large and 

14 percent in Small tells you sorr1eth.ing about the extent to which each is 

reliant on resources it has nm vet collected. Percentage distribution uses rhis 

formula: 
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CO:\P.10~-SrzE RATIOS 

Common-size ratios serve two valuable purposes. First, they can pruvide 

a quick overview of the finances of your goverrunent and how they have 

changed since last year. Did assets grow or shrink? Were tzxes the source of 

a larger or smaller share of revenue? Second, they put the financial darn of 

your government in a form that can be compared with other governments, 
regardless of how big they are (hence the name coJJm1011-siZf). In addicion, 

they can be applied to ,i,tually any kind of financial slatemmt in(omMion. There 

are two kinds of common-size ratios-percentage change and percentage 

distribution. 

Percentage change represents the magnitude of change in a particular item, 

rather than the aggregate dollar difference from one year to the next. Con

sider tl1e.se assets from Figure l, which is in Part 1"\vo: 

Dollar Percentage 
2010 2011 Change Change 

Capital assets $309,719.154 $321,411,511 $11,692,357 3.78% 

Receivables $10,052,465 $16,442,747 $6,390.282 63.57% 

Capital assets increased $1 l.7 million between 2o-J0 and 2011, while receiv

ables increased by a smaller S6.4 million, However, the percentage changes 

show that, while the dollar growth for receivables was smaller, relarive to 

tat.'ll receivabib the change was very sign.ilicarn-,rn increase of almost 64 

percent. Growth on such a scale might lead you to look further in that area 

to determine what happened and whether it has an~' implications for Local 

Citfs finances. Percentage change is calcubted using this formula: 

((n,rrcnt :·ci:r :lmnun:: - c.,rl;e ,·.,:.-Jr .--u~:nc::1;:·--:-.: _;·Her \·c.;:· ,-1:r:(1:::·,~· '.· H 

p;__:i-c.::1E.1gc ch..l.c·,:::c frn:~: c.::-' ,\_ ·r :-1) ;-:c,:n:.':;1 \::::r 

lnserr the nun1bers for receivables: 

Percentage distribution shows the portion of a tots! represented by the incli

viduaJ clements comprising the total. Consider a hypothetical set of figures. 

It probablv is not meaningful to k.now that rhe Cit)' of Large had S1 billion 

of accounts receivable and cl1c Village of Small had S1 mt/hon. Bur knowing 

that accounts receivable represented 3 percent of total assets in Large and 

14 percent in Small tells you sornething about t..he extent to which each is 

reliant on resotu-ces it has not yet colkctecL Percentage distribution uses th.is 

formula: 
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Total assets for LocaJ City are S3891j45,344. To obtain the percentage distri

bmion numbers for capital assets and receivables in Figure 1: 

: 1.i.=:_i,;.:, _2_J(;-,--- •. ~:-, --~~.., - _,\S' ;--~ ..::,:-,---'--- _'iX\J ..J...:-:'-.2__;_---1: Y. ;(_HJ= ~2.51°/u 
~ -__;_- ·-'- _3:-i,c.) __3..;._; __':-!-!": x !()ii= .J..2:2 

~ r, •~-, ·-< ,_ ,_,., 

__ -::>;::;.:-.-v c5:r•cs are concerned wiLl1 ~:our government's ability to pay for its 

most immediate ublig,uions. ln other words, they can help ~'OU detenlline if, 
oyer the next year (or less), your go\-enunent wUl have enough cash or read

il\" Lic1uidatecl assets on hand to finance the bills that come due. One measure 

of U9uidity is the CURR~NT R.:'.\TlG: 

,. 
I.nsert the governmental acci\~irjes data from Local City's governrnent-wide 

statement of net position (Figure 1 in Part Two). (You could do the same for 

the business-type acrivities1 roo.) 

This me~ns that Local Cit\"s o-overmriental acciv:itics have current assets 2.97 
' ~ 

rimes greater than i[S current liabilities. 

A narrower measure of liquidity is the QU!CH. RATIO. which compares only 

the most li9nid assets of your govermnent-generally cash, near~cash assets 

such as mone~· market funds, and other short-term investments-to its cur

rent liabilities. Tl1is is a more conservacive indicator of your govcrnmenes 

abiliL-y to meeL ubliga1:ions, assuming implicitly that its current habilities will 
come due so soon that current assets like receivables and inventory cannot 

be liqu..idatc<l citllckly enough to pay for them. 

.1\gain, using the governmental acti\-ities information from the statement of 

net pos1t1on: 
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I 
: 1-;cy RA:i!JS. like liquidity ratios, are used ro examine your gon.arnmem's 

1:Jility to fulfill obligations. But solvency ratios focus on your goYernment's 

.~11g-ten11 financial capacity. Sokencr r:uios come in two general forms-

Leverage-the degree to which ~-our gm·ernmcnt's assets are hnanced through 

borrowing and other long-term obligat.ions---cm he assessed \\-ith two ra
rios. The D"::~T-7,:,__1,S.'.;C:-S ::.·::..-:-.-:: is straightforward-torn[ liabilities di\·ided by 
rotal assets. }Jternative.ly, you might calculare tbe :·?_-- --,:;.. tt:-.::--:s·-- · 

although it tells you lirerally the same things as the debt-to-assets ratio de

spite producing a different number. The r:-11Jos ;nc. calculated below using 

srntement of net position information (Figure 1:i fr)l· the total prinury gm·-

ernmenr. (See ~Cc:F<.:' __ 

ou;fi,y,.,-:-, to understand why rhcse items need to be subrr::ic1e<l from assets 

and liabilities.) 

~n,e first caJculadon produces a racio of 0.46, or 46 percent. This 1neans rhm 

close to half of Local City's assets are financed \\·ith debt. The latter ratio is 

0.86, meaning for C\Tery doilar of resource:-: f .ucal City has :n-aiL1h!e- rn use 

for providing public services, it owe:- 86 cents. 

One t71Jica1 coverage moo, · - -:--:·_· :-::. (or cimes-imerest-earned), 

compares cash !lows generated by operations to interest pa~·ments on debt. 

Another, DEB"":' SE~\':'.'..';C :,:::· :=:•::_.:a,_:_.:.: compares cash Amvs to your goYcrnment's 

entire debt repayments, both interest and principal. These racios generally 

can be computed for the enterprise funds (and business-type activitie::., if 
they are the same) using information from d1e St;nement of ren:·nucs, ex 

penses, and changes in fund net position, stacemt:m of cash flows (Figures 

8 and 9, respect:iYely), and long-term Liabilities note disclosure (Figure 1X). 

As described in Part Two, 
deferred inflows of resources 
and deferred outflows of 
resources are inflows and 
outflows associated with 
future periods, For example, 
a government receives 
property tax payments, 
but the payments actual!y 

re!ate to the next fiscal year. 
Consequently, instead of 
reporting ttle inflow of taxes 
as cash and equivalent tax 

revenue, the government 
would report cash and an 
equivalent deferred inflow. 
This means that tt1a assets of 

this government include cash 
related to an inflow from a 

future period. !n the case of a 

deferrecl outflow. there is an 
equlvalent amount teported 

among the liabilities. 

~ This is relevant to computing 

I 
... llquidlly ratios because your 

comparison of liqmd assets 
with current liabilittes shou!d 
not include assets that are 

~ not generally available lo 
satisfy liabilities, nor liabili-
ties that are not liquidated I

"11 
in the traclitional way. lf yourI government's deferrals are 
s1gnif1cant relative to either 
assets or liabilities, when 

calculating quick and currer:: 
ratios you should remove 
(1) an amount equal to t--2-

~ deterred outflows from :- c:: 

W,; llabilitiesand(2)ar,5.-=----=
I equal to ttw deferre-: "' 
f.r. from the assets. 

I 

https://Jternative.ly


APPENDIX C 

.$O:.'.fG,3S: 

Cas/J flows from proprietary 
funds cash flows statement 

Interest expense from state
ment of revenues, expenses. 
and changes in fund net 
position 

Del)t service equals interest 
expense plus principal repay
ments, which come from the 
long.term liabilities note 

The MD&A states that 
a total of $43 million of 

and revenue debt was 
refinanced; furthermore, 
MD&A reveals that no new 
GO or revenue debt was 
issued during the year. The 
additions in Figure 18, then, 
mLJst be entirely the refund
ing bonds (22,205 + 15,840 
= 38,045). The remainder of 
the $43 million (43,000 -

38,045 • 4,955) is related 
to the parking debt. Subtract 

t11at from parking debt 
reductions (8,895 - 4,955 
"" 3,940) to obtain a rough 
estimate of the normal 
principal repayment for park
ing debt The total principal 
repayment for the enterprise 
funds, then, is $6.1 million 
(3,940 + 2,178), 

1.e.:c:: '.'-(·: \·:cc :.·,;·;cc·;i_'.;:'.C- = ,:u\s:1 :low fror.·1 operation~_)._ debr st:rYice) 
...:.. "-'.cbr :-;:.:T,-icc 

This is a good example of a potential problem that might arise when trying 
to calculate a debt service coverage ratio. The missing number is the princi

pal repayment; it is missing because the figures for reductions in outstand

ing parking facilities debt in the long-term liabilities note includes principal 
payments related to refunding bonds. If current long-term interest rates are 

lower than those on a govermnent's outstanding bonds, it may choose to 

issue new bonds at the lowet rate and use the proceeds 

"' 

to repay the more , , 

costly bonds. By doing so, the government reduces its future annual interest· 

expenses. We know from MD&A that Local City refunded a lot of outstand- ;. 

ing deb~ inclucling the debt issued to build the parking faciliJies. In order ro/ 
calculate the ratio, we need to be able to remove the portion of the reduc~~ 
tion related to the refunding because it is not a part of the recurring annml :, 
principal repayment that T.ocal City will face in future years. 

Your govcrnment1s finance officials probably can tell you the amount of Ine 
refunding principal repayment. The remainder can be added to the principlllj 
repapnem for water and sewer debt and plugged into the formula. In Eb::. 
rnse of Local City, based on the information in J'vID&A and Figure 3, we=<, 
guess that the amount is i11 tbe vicinity of $6.1 million. (Ihis figure is derirei '? 
in the margin, to the left. Alternatively, you might use the first year's CE:£ :: 
in your government1s note cLisclosurc regarding future debt service req,zJ:~.:<} 

ments; that note is not illustrated in this guide.) 

Restating tl1e calculation, then: 

1f mu think that was cLifficult, it is nothing compared with the probl= :c·

calculating either of these ratios for the govcrrunental activities or ..:...,.. =·-· 
r.al primary government, principally because the statements contain::: ~:-:

flows informatjon for either. Consequentlyj one must tnake somet:i..r:r:"2 ~~-::
cionable assumptions about other information that can be substiture:: -:-: ~ ::. • 

missing data. In the end, the formula ends up being as long as this ;:-.c:-'-o---
Oiterally) and contains potentially imprecise substitute numbers. 

reasons, we ,viii not pursue the matter further in this guide. 
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The coverage ratios are interpreted in much the same way as the liquidity 
ratios, comparing available ( or likely to be available) resources with resource 

needs, An interest coverage ratio of l.69 suggests that a goverrunent will 

have about 1.7 times as much cash as will be needed to make its annual in

terest payments on long-term debt. Similarly, the debt service coverage ratio 
implies resources approximately 1.2 times (or 20 percent greater than) the 
expected amount needed to make interest and principal payments. 

Ability-to-Pay Ratios 

A set of ratios that addresses similar concerns as coverage ratios may be 

categorized as abilil)'-!0-pay ratios. By combining liability it1formation from the 
statement of net position with certain nonfinancial data and comparing the 

resulting ratios over time and with other, similar governments, you can gain 

insights into your government's financial capacity These ratios compare out

standing debts, revenues, and e.,penses with economic indicators that imply 

a constituency's ability to pay for government services. Some of the nec
essary economic information may be in your govermnenfs CAl-:ril; if it is 

not, or if your government does not prepare a CAFR, there are otber easily 

accessible sources of nonfinancial information. (See Tools of the trade... 

sources of nonfitlancial data.) 

Three ratios of this type using liability data were discussed in Part Two. They 

are calculated belO'f,': 

debt per SJOO of ,issessed property Ya]ue = 
[(total liabilities - total deferred omAows) ;-< i(IOJ 

+ total ,,ssessed pmpert\· value 

[(Sl80,736,57 .> - l,754,896) x IOU[+ S.1923,863,88,J = 
S4.56 per S 100 of assessed propcrt)- ,-alue 

debt per Sl,OOU of personal income= [(total liabilities - rota I defrrreci 
outflows) x l,OOOJ + tmal personal incon1e 

[(SIS0,736,573 - 1,754,89(,1 x l,tlill)] + S8,0(10,Ull(J,(ll)(I = 
S22.37 per Sl,UUO of pt'.rsona! income 

debt ixr capiia ~ (ror~1i Ji,;.,_hilirics - t1x:1l t!er-c:-rrtd 1>uttlows) + 
tc ,mi pupt,hti< ,n. 
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APPENDIX C 

Tools of the trade .. , 
sources of nonfinancial 
data 

Some of the economic data 
you might want to use for 
financial ratios can be found 
in the statistical section of 
your government's compre
hensive annual financial 
report (CAFR). If it is not 
there, i\is easy to go to tl1e 
source your government 
probably got the data from 
In the first place-the federal 
government. These agencies 
have websites with onllne 
statistics: 

Bureau of the Census: social 
and economic characteristics 
of population, poverty, retail 
trade <.tllww.census.gov> 

Hureau of Economic AnalySls: 
personal Income, gross state 
product <www,bea gc:,>v> 

Bureau of Labor Statistics: 
employment, unemployment, 
Inflation rates <www.b!s.gov> 

Bureau of Justice Statistics: 
crime rates, Inmates in jail, 
drug use <hJs.o\p.usdo_j,_ggy> 

Bureau of Transportation 
Statistics: highway statistics, 
passenger levels, aviation 

<wvvw bts.F.!01/> 

Environmental Protection 
Agency: pollution, environmen
tal qualrty <WWW,I;.na.gov> 

National Center for Education 
Stallstlcs: elementary an(l 
secondary education and 
higher education information 
<~S,~(:l.,g_Q1i> 

National Center for Health 
Statistics: birth and mortality 
rates, llfe expectancy, disease 
rates <1.~N1.cdc.gg_y/nclls> 

https://WWW,I;.na.gov
www.b!s.gov
https://tllww.census.gov


fa-,PPE:NrnX C 

··:,o:s of the trade...adjusting for inflation 

Inflation may be defined as the Increase over time in l!ie prevailing prices lhat are 
paid for goods and services. A portion of the growth in spending exhibited by a 
government each year is the effect of higher prices tor motor fuel, supplies, food, 
professional services. and so on. 

Many analysts adjust their financial trend data to remove this impact before 
1 calculating percentage changes and other ratios. One reason they do this is to 

obtain a more precise read on financial changes related to decisions rnade by a 
government's officials, rather than changes that occurre<l because a government 

must pay t1igher prices. 

The process for converting the "nominal" dollars stated in each year's financial 
statements to Mconstant dollar" numbers that do not include inflation commoniy relies 
on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) compiled by tt,e U.S. Bureau of labor Statistics 
for various regions of the country. The CPI has a base ttiat is an average of the prices 
in 1983 and 1984•-this base is given a vatue of 100. In each subsequent year, the 
Index grows by the amount of innation tor that year. For example, it inflation had l)een 
5 percent in the first year, the index would have risen from 1.00 to 105. 

Using the CPI to adjust financial data essentially involves adding inflation to or 
subtracting it from al! data so that the comparison data is stated on the same basis 
as a selected base year (often the last year in a trend}. The formula used follows: 

;base :;•:.>?.r CP! - co1:1;)2•·1s~·~ :·E3' CP:· ~ ·,:,·•1 --:=;, ,:.:0:,2,, a"•o~.:·,t f<Y cc;~• ,c:;~:s::ir; ;·ta:· 
=constc:,,~ da ;f:: 2,1,0,.;--,:;: ~-::;· -~-:-.-·,;:;:,-:s_:,·. ~e&[ 

Consider a situation in which you W(Hll to corn pare expenditures tor emergency rescue 
services last year {$1.00,500) with 10 years ago ($72,800), and you want to adjust 
for inflation i)y making the older figures comparable with !ast year's. The CPI for last 
year was 168.t and it was 121.3 10 years ago. The calculations would look like this: 

Before the adjustments, the percentage cllange between $72,800 anc! $100.500 
was a 38 percent increase. However, once you calculate the constant dollar amount 
for the earlier year, you see that the percentage change is a 0.6 percent decrease 
in "real .. or inflation-adjusted terms. !n other words, were it not tor the effects of 
inflation, expenditures tor emergency rescue services actually would have fallen 

slightly over the 10-year period. 
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APPEND!X C ~m 

I 
\\'irh some additional ecunon1ic and demographlc information, you can pro

duce anocher pcrrinent incLcator: 

The ,werage family .;;ize in Local City is 2.4 persons. Avcl'agc debt per family is: 

Part Two also presented four examples of these ratios using revenue and 
expense darn frnm the go,'ernmcnt·-wide srntement of activities. They ,vere 

calculated as follows: 

Health and sanitation expenses per capita: 

Fin,rncial support per pupil: 

i, 

Propcn:--· taxes per S l l10 of property Yalue: 

~ - -i-,-~C.2J.4': ·;,: ;1_;1_1:---:- S.'i.9::2.1,86.1/f.-+ = 
St_»:,, 'Ji.::t SJ i.:l i ,-{ ,:-it;JD(:"l"!\' Y« lue 

Taxes per capita: 

.. :C\.C'.5- - !_,, L!, (iiFpU!,·1~1,_i:1:::: 

__;__-::::J. :...:..~ -- ~- 1~:ij- 15 ...;_ ~;.-;:(/i,S0-; ;:-;t)_(;---!-5 = 
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APPENDIX E 

By the numbers...major c~arncteristics of the gover!:ment-ViiCe and fond 
financlal statements 

Scope 

Display 
features 

MFBA 

Statements 

Government

Wide 

All activities of a 
government (ex

cept fiduciary), 
including govern
mental activities, 
business-type 

activities, and 
component units 

Information 
divided among 
governmental 
and business

type activities 
and component 
units 

Economic 
resources and 
full accrual 

Statement of net 
position 

Statement of 
activities 

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary Funds 

Funds ~unds 

Basic services of ~ ervices that 
government. typ c arge a fee to 
ically financed u ers and aper

with taxes: at, much like 

makes up most pr ate busineE: 

of governmental es, enterprise 

activities (with fun ·is are basi 

internal service call the samE 
funds) as t usiness-t pe 

acti' ities (int r
na! s ,rvice f nds 
gene ally are 
gover ,ment I) 

''Major" funds "Majo • en

sl1own indt terpris funds 
vidua!ly; smaller shown nd\1-
funds aggregat vldually s~aller 
ed into a single funds a 
column internal ~rvice 

funds a€ ,re
gated in two 

column: 

EstalJlished 
relationships in 
which a govern
ment minds (and 
may even man

age) resources 
that belong to 
others and are 

not av-dilable to 
the government 

itself 

Funds aggregat
ed into columns 
by type of fund
pension (and 
other employee 
benefit) trusts, 
Investment 
trusts, private

purpose trusts, 
and agency 
funds 

Current financial Econrniiic Economic 

resources and resau r c:es a d resources and 

modified accrua1 full a( brual full accrual 

Balance sheet Stati-h1ent a! net 
posi1 on 

Statement of 
revenues, ex- Sta c,rnent 
pendrtures, and of r venues, 

changes in fund exr enses, and 

balances ch nges in fun 
m position 

S atement of 

c sh flows 

Statement of 
fiduciury net 
position 

Statement of 

changes in 
tiduClary net 

position 

Dedicated. revenues 

rW1ds are also particularly convenient for following 1.he flow of individual 

sources of derEc1tecl revenue. r\ssumc, for instance, that a town levies a real 
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Montana Offii;e of Public lnstructfon 
P.O. Box 202501Office of Public Instruction Helena, Mi. 59620~2501 

'---/ Denise Juneau, State Superintendent (406) 444-3095 
(883) 23 J.9)93' (406) 4'4·0169 (TTY)

opi,mt,gov Ql)l.mt.gov 

DATE: September2012 

TO: Auditors of Montana School Districts 

FROM: Steve Hamel 

RE: School District Audits for FY 2011-2012 

This letter is intended to provide new information and updates regarding issues that affect Montana 
school district audits for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The information provided was drawn 
from the review of FY201 l audits, the FY2012 Trustees Financial Summary (TFS) and the 2011 
Montana Legislative Session. Throughout this letter are hyperlinks to related web pages. Click the 
blue words to follow the links. 

Enclosed: Appendix A - Enrollment/ANB Schedule 
Appendix B - Excess Reserves Changes 

Request for Information - Standard Audit Contract 
Requests for information pertaining to potential financial or legal compliance issues relating to a 
school district or cooperative can be sent to: Debbie Casey, OPT, P.O. Box 202501, Helena, MT 
59620-2501orfax requests to (406) 444-0509. Email requests may be sent to dcasey@mt.gov. Please 
allow two weeks for a response. If requesting information regarding multiple entities, list the 
districts/cooperatives by county to expedite the turnaround ofinfmmation. 

Submission of Audit Reports to OPI 
A copy ofthe audit report is required to be sentto the OP[ per MCA, 2-7-503, regardless of the level 
of the audit perfonned. Please send a copy of the audit and available response to Steve Hamel, OP!, 
P.O. Box 202501, Helena, MT 59620-2501. 

School Finance Division Website 
The OP! School Finance Division website includes pages pertaining auditor information and 
entitlement payments. Included on the auditor information page are TFS reports, enrollment reports, 
and the value of donated commodities by fiscal year. 

The Montana Office ofPt1blic lmtrucrion provides vision, advocacy, support, and leadership for schools and communities 
ro ensure thar all students meet today's clwllenges and tomoffow's opportunities. 

mailto:dcasey@mt.gov
https://Ql)l.mt.gov


School District Audits for FY2011-12 Continued 

2011 Legislative Session 
The OP! has provided a K-12 Legislative Summarv which entails information pertinent to school 
districts for FY2012. 

Multi-District Agreements 

Senate Bill 329 approved the creation of Multi-District Agreements. The following linl{ provides 
guidance to the rules and regulations of the bill. 

http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/SchoolFinance/Acct/!VlultidistrictAgreementsFAQ.pdf 

Debt Service Fund - General Obligation Bouds, QZABs, QSCBs - Associated Expenditures 
OPI's monitoring efforts have shown that the annual agent fees associated with general obligation bonds is an 
area often grossly overstated resulting in overpayment of the state reimbursement for school facilities state 
guaranteed tax ba,e aid (GTB Facilities). In addition to compliance efforts, the OPI requests that auditors be 
aware of and verify fees charged to the Debt Service Funcl. 

Annual agent fees are an allowable expenditure of the Debt Service Fund and are recognized for state paid fTS O> 
GTB Facilities. Agent fees are specifically identified on the bond agreement and are charged by the Registrar n::1src\Pcl 
and Paying Agent. The annual agent fee is $300 for regular bonds (General Obligation), QZAB and QSCB .:, 3 J f.t;.

00 

bonds. --
(iitY\o<· no,1-('0rY1pl ,cl\-'\Ct'

Districts receiving direct subsidies (versus the tax credit) on the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB) 
and Quality School Construction Bonds (QSCB) will also have the Paying Agent submit the paperwork to 
receive the subsidy from the Federal government. Thisji/ing fee is$ I00 per interest payment processing. 
All of the sinking fund bonds issued have semi-annual interest payment due dates. The filing fee is an 
allowable expenditure of the Debt Service Fund and is recognized for state paid GTB Facilities. 

Districts should include $500 in filing fees ($200 filing fee+ $300 agent fee) per issue for the sinking fund 
bonds annually in the Debt Service Fund budget. According to the sinking fund bond agreement, school 
districts must hire an accounting finn annually to verify that the Sinking Funa Yield is less than Permitted 
Sinking Fund Yield. Districts may hire their own auditor to provide this servke. These annual charges are 
contracted services and should not be expended from the Debt Service fund. Depending on the project, these 
charges could be expended from the General, Building or Flexibility funds, or other appropriate fund. The 
charges for these services arc not agent fees, are not allowable expenditures of the Debt Service Fund and are 
not recognized for state paid GTB Facilities. Contact Kathleen Wanner at k\vanncr@mt.gov or (406) 444 -

9852 with any questions. 

GASB Statement No. 54 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, is 
effective for fiscal periods that begin after June 15, 2010, meaning the implementation date for 
Montana school districts is the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The Office of Public Instruction 
offered several training opportunities for school districts regarding GASB 54 during the last 2 years. 
The training was based on the DOA presentation provided at the following link: GASB 54 New Fund 
Balance Reporting. Other information regarding GASB 54 can be found at the Local Government 

Services Bureau website. 

The Monrana Office ofPublic fmtruc/ion provides vision, advocacy, support, and leadership for 5choo/s and communities 

to ensure that all students meet iodoy's challenges and wmorrow'5 opportuniries. 

mailto:k\vanncr@mt.gov
http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/SchoolFinance/Acct/!VlultidistrictAgreementsFAQ.pdf


School District Audits for FY20 I 1-12 Continued 

Pupil Transportation Fund and Reporting 

Payroll Charges 
Many schools charge a portion of the superintendent's and clerk's salarv and benefits to the 
transportation ti.ind. Please audit whether the portion ofan administrato;·•s payroll costs 
charged to the transportation fund are reasonable. The portion of the person's time spent on transportation 
issues should approximate the portion of the person's salary charged to the 
transp011ation fund. See ARM I 0.10.303 (APPENDIX E). We have indications the percentages 
of administrator's salaries charged to the transportation fund are as high as 20%, even when very little or no 
time is spent on transportation issues. Motivation is very high to move costs inappropriately to funds to 
escape the general fund "caps." 

Vehicle Purchases in the Transportation Fund 
Please verify that the transportation fund purchased only yellow school buses that are used 
on school bus routes. Activities and athletics buses and non-bus vehicles cannot be purchased from the 
transportation fund. Replacement buses for activities and athletics can be purchased using the bus 
depreciation fund. The transportation fund cannot be used to purchase drivers' education cars or vehicles 
intended to be used for employee travel. The drivers' education fund or general fund may purchase a drivers' 

education car. 

Activities, Athletics, and Employee Travel 
Costs of providing activities and athletic trips travel costs for employees are NOT allowable expenditures to 
the transportation fund. Again, shrinking budgets in general funds cause motivation to move these costs to 
other funds. We request your increased audit scrutiny. 

Mandatory 10 Hours of Bus Driver Training 
Each district is required to create and implement a driver training program that meets the needs of the 
district and bus drivers. A program must be provided that includes IO hours of in-service training that 
shall include, but not limited to: Pre and post trip inspections, passenger boarding and deboarding 
procedures, driving skills, defense driving, railroad safety, passenger management, safety and 
emergency procedures, and special needs sensitivity and awareness. Each training opportunity for 

nw1pl,a,xcevery driver must be documented and maintained by the district. A training schedule must be set per 
frstcvt</fiscal year or school year, but not both 

Valid Bus Driver Credentials 
As per MCA, 20-10-103 in order for school districts to receive state and county transpmtation 
reimbursement, they are required to have on file a valid CDL, signed First Aid card by an authorized 
instructor, and a valid Medical Certificate for every bus driver assigned to their district. If these document· 
are not on file, the district risks forfeiting their state and county transportation reimbursement. 

Education Jobs Funding 
The Education Jobs Funding (Eel Jobs) was a federal fonding source resulting from an amendment to 
the ARRA that was paid to the Montana school district's general fund during FY2011 AND FY2012 FTS D 
with the Direct State Aid (DSA) payments. The funds were distributed on a reimbursement basis. The ·P,c_c,e, vfcl 
FY 2012 payments were a continuation of the funding in FY201 land much smaller than the original if 3 ? Iv)., 

' payments. 

The Montana Office of Public /nstruaion provide, vision, adrncacy, support, ond leaders/Jiµ for schools and communirles 

to ensure that all studenH rneet today's chaffenges and tomorrow's opportunities. 



School District Audits for FY2011-12 Continued 

Impact Aid Program Audit Findings 
The United States Department ofEducation has issued a memo to provide additional guidance on the 
exemption from 0MB Circulars A-87 and the A-102 Common Rule for the Impact Aid Program. 

Student Count for ANB-Reporting Procedures 
In the FY2011-12 school year enrollment data was imported into MAEFATRS from the Achievement in 
Montana (ATM) system. MAEFATRS imported the minimum enrollment information necessary to determine 
a school district's Average Number Belonging (ANB). AIM was used to collect student enrollment, 
attendance on official count dates, aggregate hours, and student demographic information. For more 
infomiation regarding enrollment and ANB see the letter regarding Student Count for ANB Repmting to the 
Office ofPublic Tnstmction. Contact Nica Merala atmailto:nmerala@lmt.govor (406) 444 - 4401 with any 
questions. 

Achievement in Montana (AIM) 
Please take into account the following infonnation when checking enrollment: 

1. Review student enrollments where enrollment end date falls close to count date. Once a district 
receives notice that a student has transferred, the enrollment end date should be set to the date the 
student was last present in the district. If the district has not received notice that a student has 
transferred, they should continue the enrollment pel' district policy (usually carry for 10 days) and 
then end date the enrollment record. 

2. The district must have an agreement with the MT Youth ChalleNGe Academy and/or Job Corps 
program for students that are being counted for AND. The credits these students are taking must meet 
the district's requirements for graduation at a school in the district and they must be reported by the 
Job Corps or MT Youth ChalleNGe Academy to the student's resident district. The district should 
have this documentation. For more infom1ation, see§ 20-9-707 and§ 20·9-311 (12), MCA. 

3. Verify district records for students identified as less than full time (aggregate hours not equal to 
F). The district should have documentation or schedules indicating how many classes a student is 
taking and that these hours calculate to the appropriate aggregate hours. 

If you have any questions regarding AIM please contact Sara Loewen at (406) 444-3494 or 
sloewen@mt.,rov 

State Tuition for State Placement Payment-Compliance with MCA 
Review of the FY2011 TFS brought to our attention that districts receiving the State Tuition for State 
Placement monies (revenue code 3117) may not be in compliance with MCA 20-5-324 (6)(a) through (6)(d). 
Please continue checking to assure your districts are receipting these funds correctly. 

American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) 
The American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of2009 was signed into law by President Obama on 
February 17th, 2009. The Office of Management and Budget (0MB) has posted an addendum to the 0MB 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement for the ARRA. 

The Montana Office ofPublic Instruction provides v;sfon, advocacy, support, and leadership for schools and communities 
to emure that all students meet today's challenges and tomorrow's opportvnities. 

mailto:sloewen@mt.,rov


School District Audits for FY2011-12 Continued 

The following is a breakdown of ARRA funds that were available to school districts and cooperatives for FY 
2012: 

ARRA IDEA Part B• 
ARRA IDEA, Preschool* 
ARRA Title I, Pm1 A* 
ARRA School Improvement 1003g• 
ARRA Title 11-D- Competitive• 
ARRA McKinney-Vento Homeless Children & Youth• 
ARRA Title I SchoolWide Program* 
ARRA Impact Aid Discretionary Construction Grant 
ARRA National Clean Diesel Grant (included a local match requirement) 
*There are no new grant requirements for these fodcrnl funds, but with the increase in grant funding you should be familiar with the 
specific statutory and regulatory requirements for these grants. 

Rural Education Achievement Program (REAP) 
Review of the 2012 Trustees Financial Summaries brought to our attention that some districts receiving 
REAP monies carried a positive balance at the end of the fiscal year. This indicates that these districts 
requested monies in advance but did not spend or encumber them. Appendix D, #3 on page 29 of the 
guidance link below states that LEA 's should only request monies as needed specific obligations that it has 
already incurred or that it will need within the next 3 days. REAP Guidance from the Department of 
Education 

Long Term Leases 
School districts are limited to 3-year leases for real and personal propei1y and \or busses. MCA 70-6-609 and 
MCA 20-10-110 deal specifically with these leases. Busses purchased through an lntcrcap Loan are the onlyJt>e, 
exception. Buildings or land arc also limited to 3-ycar leases, MCA 20-6-625. unless approved by voters. For -\\ 1 U "O\ 
guidance on Intercap Loans thrnugh the board of investments please follow this link: (MCA 20-9-471 ,2 ';" _ 

1'r 
Issuance of obhgat,ons - authonzat,on c cond1t1.ons). DI;;. 

Long-tenn leases for busses and copiers have been indicated, but not noted in some recent audits. Please be 
aware of these limitations. 
If you have any questions please contact me at (406)-444-0783 or shamel@mt.gov or contact Janelle 
Mickelson at (406)-444-3249 or mailto:imickelson'.a'mt.gov 

The Monrana Offrce of Public /nstrucrion provides vision, advocacy, support, and leadership for schoofs and communities 
to emute that all studenrs meet roday's clwllenge5 and romorrow's opportunitie5. 

mailto:imickelson'.a'mt.gov
mailto:shamel@mt.gov


School District Audits for FY201 l-12 Continued 

_-:: Appendb:: A ::) Supplemental Schedule 

School District Number 2 
County 

Montana 
SCHEDULE OF ENROLLMENT 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Fall Enrollment Fall Per Enrollment Audit Per 

Elementary District Reports District Records Difference 

(b} Kindergarten Full 111 111 0 
(c) Kindergarten Part 309 309 0 
(d) Grades 1-6 2,280 2,281 ·>1 
(e) Grades 7-8 7B6 784 -2 

(f) Tota! Elementary (add lines a thru o) 3,500 3499 -1 

Part-time students: Per Enrollment Reports Audit Per District Records Difference 
180-359 hrs/yr 360-5:39 hrs/yr -540-719 Ors/yrGrade <!'.1 BO hrs/yr 180-359 hrS/yr 360-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hr$1yrl <180 hr5/yr 

K- Full 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
K-Part 0 0 NIA NIA 0 0 NIA NIA o 
1-6 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 

0 07-8 1 2 0 0 1 2 0 

Fall Enrollment Fall Per Enrollment Audit Per 

High School District Reports District Records Difference 

1,194 +1(9) Grades 9-12 1.193 
0(h) 19 Year--olds Included on line (f) 4 4 

(i) Job Corps students included on line (f} 0 0 0 

Per Erirollment Reports Audit Per Dlstdct Records DifferencePart-time students: 
Grade <180 hrs/yr 180-359 hrs/yr 360-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hrs/yrl "180 hrs/yr 180-359 hr:-'Jyr 380-539 hrs/yr 640-719 hrs/yr 

12 07 12 79-12 3 6 3 6 

Spring Enrollment Spring Per Cnro/lment AuditPer 

Reports District Records DifferenceElementary District 

114 0(k) Kindergarten Full 114 
0{l) Kindergarten Pan 305 305 
0(m) Grades 1-6 2,293 2,293 

788 0(n) Grades 7-8 788 
3,521 0(o) rotal Elementary (add lines i thru I) 3,521 

Oitference 

Grade <180 hrs/yr 180-359 hrsfyr 360.-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hrslyrl <180 hrs/yr 180-359 hn;/yr "360-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hrs/yr 

K- Fu!I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Part-tlmo students: Par Enrollment Reports Audit Per District Rocords 

K- Part 0 0 NIA NIA O o NIA NIA 0 
1-6 0 0 1 t O O 1 1 O 
7-8 3 1 1 0 3 1 1 0 O 

Spring Per Enrollment Audit Per 

High School District Reporls District Records Difference 

(p) Grades 9-12 1,865 1,865 0 
(q) 19 Voar-olds Included on !ine n 4 5 +1 
(r) Early Graduales (not included in n} 45 45 0 

(s) Job Corps studGnts included on line n 0 0 0 

Per Enrollment Reports Audit Par District Records Difference 

180-359 hrs/yr 360-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hrs/yrl s::180 hrs/yr 180-359 hr,,/yr 360-539 hrs/yr 540-719 hrs/yr 
5 7 6 5 5 7 6 0 

The Montana Office ofPublic Instruction provides vision, advocacy, support, and leadefship for schools and communities 
to ensure that all studenrs meet coday's challenges and tomorrow's opporwnirfes. 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	~ · 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Dollar Percentage 2010 2011 Change Change Capital assets $309,719.154 $321,411,511 $11,692,357 3.78% Receivables $10,052,465 $16,442,747 $6,390.282 63.57% 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	I
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	"' 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure




